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LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL
MEETING SUMMARY
October 25, 2021

Speaker Fecteau called the October 25, 2021 meeting of the 130" Legislative Council to order at
11:05 a.m. in the Legislative Council Chamber.

ROLL CALL

Senators:

Representatives:

Legislative Officers:

President Jackson, Senator Vitelli, Senator Daughtry, Senator
Timberlake and Senator Pouliot

Speaker Fecteau, Representative Dunphy, Representative Talbot Ross,
Representative Dillingham and Representative Stetkis

Darek Grant, Secretary of the Senate

Robert Hunt, Clerk of the House

Suzanne Gresser, Executive Director

Edward Charbonneau, Revisor of Statutes

Chris Nolan, Director, Office of Fiscal and Program Review

Nik Rende, Director, Director, Legislative Information Technology
Jackie Little, Human Resources Director

Speaker Fecteau convened the meeting at 11:05 a.m. with a quorum of members present.

SUMMARY OF OCTOBER 7, 2021 MEETING OF LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL

Motion: That the Meeting Summary for October 7, 2021 be accepted and placed on file.
Motion by Senator Daughtry. Second by President Jackson. Motion passed
unanimously (10-0-0-0).
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REPORTS FROM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND COUNCIL OFFICES
Fiscal Report

Chris Nolan, Director, Office of Fiscal and Program Review, submitted the written report found in
the agenda packet.

Studies Report

Danielle Fox, Director, Office of Policy and Legal Analysis, submitted the written studies report
found in the agenda packet.

Speaker Fecteau indicated, without objection, that he would present the Personnel Committee’s report later
in the meeting.
OLD BUSINESS

None

NEW BUSINESS

Item #1: Proposed Document Service Fee Schedule for 130™ Legislature, Second Regular Session

Ms. Gresser presented the proposed Document Service fee schedule submitted by Clerk of the
House, Robert Hunt, for the Second Regular Session. The fees remain the same as the First Regular
Session.

Motion: That the Legislative Council approves proposed Document Service Fee Schedule
for the 130" Legislature Second Regular Session. Motion by Representative Talbot Ross.
Second by Representative Dillingham. Motion passed unanimously (10-0-0-0).
Item #2: Legislative Council meeting schedule for 2022
Ms. Gresser reviewed the proposed meeting schedule for the Legislative Council for 2022.
Motion: That the Legislative Council approve the 2022 Legislative Council meeting

schedule. Motion by Senator Vitelli. Second by Representative Dunphy. Motion passed
unanimous (10-0-0-0).
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Item #3: Procedures for Deciding Legislative Bill Requests and Consideration of Bill Requests for the
Second Regular Session.

Ms. Gresser reviewed the procedures for the review of Legislative Bill Requests and the proposed
protocol for deciding those requests.

Motion: That the Legislative Council approves the proposed protocol for deciding

Legislative Bill Requests. Motion by Senator Timberlake. Second by Representative

Talbot Ross. Motion passed unanimously (10-0-0-0).
The Legislative Council proceeded to consider and vote on three hundred twenty-nine (329) bill
requests in accordance with the adopted protocol, and using an electronic voting system. The
Legislative Council authorized one hundred seven (107) bills for introduction in the Second
Regular Session, and tabled four (4) bill requests. Three (3) bill requests were withdrawn by the
sponsors prior to the Legislative Council’s vote. The Legislative Council’s action on the bill
requests is attached.

Speaker Fecteau returned to an agenda item that had been deferred, and presented a report from a Council
Committee.

REPORTS FROM COUNCIL COMMITTEES
Personnel Committee

Speaker Fecteau reported that the Personnel Committee met earlier today to consider Collective
Bargaining. Ms. Gresser briefed the committee about recent collective bargaining negotiations with
MSEA. This item will be discussed later in today’s meeting.

The Legislative Council then returned to the other items on the agenda.

Item #4: Executive Session: Collective Bargaining Matters and Employment Terms and Conditions
for Certain Legislative Employees

Motion: That in accordance with 1 MRSA § 405, sub§ 6, the Legislative Council enter
into an executive session for the purpose of discussing collective bargaining negotiations.
Motion by Speaker Fecteau. Second by Representative Dunphy. Motion passed
unanimously (10-0-0-0).

The Legislative Council entered into an executive session at 12:49 p.m. At the conclusion of its
executive session, on a motion by Senator Daughtry, seconded by Representative Dillingham, the
Legislative Council voted unanimously to ends its executive session at 1:03 p.m. and reconvene its
regular meeting during which the following motion regarding collective bargaining was made.
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Motion: That pursuant to its authority under 26 MRSA, §979-A, sub-§5, the Legislative
Council of the 130™ Legislature ratify the collective bargaining agreement for the period
October 1, 2021 through September 30, 2023 that was negotiated and tentatively agreed to by
the authorized representatives of the Legislative Council and the Maine Service Employees
Association on October 14, 2021. Further, that the Legislative Council authorize the
Executive Director to take all necessary steps to carry out the terms of this Agreement; Further,
that upon recommendation of the Personnel Committee, the Legislative Council exercise its
right to adopt the revisions to its personnel policies, pending agreement from the respective
authorities, to apply personnel policies and benefit provisions that are comparable to those
contained in the aforementioned ratified collective bargaining agreement; and direct its
Executive Director to incorporate as appropriate and administer those provisions. Motion by
Speaker Fecteau. Second by Rep. Dillingham. Motion passed unanimously (10-0-0-0).

ANNOUNCEMENTS AND REMARKS

Senator Vitelli asked for clarification on the upcoming dates for appeal. Speaker Fecteau confirmed
with staff that November 1% is the deadline for bill sponsors to file appeals of bills that were not
accepted by the Legislative Council at today’s meeting, and the Legislative Council would meet to
consider appeals on November 18",

President Jackson asked staff if they could provide regular updates on sales tax revenue generated by
sales of adult use marijuana and medical marijuana.

With no other business to consider or further announcements, the Legislative Council meeting was
adjourned at 1:11 p.m.
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130th Legislature - Second Regular Session
Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action
Representative Alley of Beals
LR 2270 FAILED
An Act To Help the Lobster Industry Respond to New Federal Rules and
Regulations

Representative Andrews of Paris

LR 2282 FAILED
An Act To Protect Financial Privacy by Prohibiting the Surveillance of
Financial Transactions

LR 2283 FAILED
An Act To Stimulate Economic Recovery for Hourly Workers Paid Overtime
at Time and a Half for Tax Year 2022

LR 2371 FAILED

An Act To Improve Pathways to Certain Professional Licenses By Removing
the Good Moral Character Requirement

Representative Arford of Brunswick
LR 2348 FAILED

An Act To Address the Urgent Need for Primary Care Providers in Maine By
Licensing Medical School Graduates as Assistant Physicians

Representative Babbidge of Kennebunk
LR 2417 FAILED

An Act To Establish the Commission on the Future of Maine's Intertidal
Lands

Senator Bailey of York

LR 2367 FAILED
An Act To Promote Affordable Housing by Allowing the Adoption of
Subdivision Standards Established by the Maine State Housing Authority

LR 2396 PASSED

An Act To Provide Insurance Coverage for a Beneficiary on a Transfer on
Death Deed

Senator Baldacci of Penobscot
LR 2224 FAILED
An Act To Amend the Crime of Endangering the Welfare of a Child

Page 1 of 34 Office of the Executive Director 11/12/2021 4:54:08 PM
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130th Legislature - Second Regular Session
Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action

Senator Baldacci of Penobscot

LR 2280 FAILED
An Act To Establish the Office of the Inspector General of Maine Child
Protection

LR 2281 FAILED
Resolve, To Direct the University of Maine System To Study the Feasibility of
Establishing a Public Allopathic Medical School in Penobscot County

LR 2285 PASSED
An Act To Improve the Child and Family Court Process

LR 2286 FAILED
An Act To Ensure All Maine Children Have a Healthy Start by Providing
Health Care Coverage

LR 2291 FAILED
An Act To Strengthen Maine's Child Protection Laws

LR 2430 FAILED
An Act To Reduce the Sales Tax on Automobiles

LR 2431 PASSED
An Act To Address Staffing Shortages in Critical Public Safety Jobs through
Economic Incentives

LR 2432 FAILED
An Act To Combat Unwanted Telephone Solicitations

LR 2433 FAILED
An Act To Expand the Scope of the Retired County and Municipal Law
Enforcement Officers and Municipal Firefighters Health Insurance Program

LR 2459 FAILED
An Act To Establish a Minimum Wage for All Health Care Workers Including
All Support Staff

LR 2469 FAILED
An Act Regarding Syringe Exchange Programs

LR 2470 FAILED

Page 2 of 34 Office of the Executive Director 11/12/2021 4:54:08 PM
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130th Legislature - Second Regular Session
Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action
Senator Baldacci of Penobscot
Resolve, Directing the Commissioner of Health and Human Services and the
Commissioner of Corrections To Develop Alternative Responses to Mental
Health and Substance Use Disorder Emergency Calls
LR 2471 FAILED
An Act To Assist Communities in Dealing with Homelessness by Providing
State Funding
Senator Bennett of Oxford
LR 2173 FAILED
An Act Regarding the Application of Antimicrobial Agents by School Facilities
Staff
LR 2215 FAILED

An Act To Provide for a Religious Exemption from All Vaccine Mandates

Representative Berry of Bowdoinham

LR 2122 FAILED
An Act To Prohibit a Regulated Utility from Disconnecting Service to a
Designated Public Safety Facility without 60 Days' Advance Notice

LR 2124 FAILED
An Act To Require the Public Utilities Commission To Specify the Percentage
Increase or Decrease in the Delivery Portion of an Electricity Customer's Bill
in All Communications Relating to Delivery Rate Adjustments

LR 2492 PASSED
An Act To Support Employees of the Riverview Psychiatric Center and
Riverview Psychiatric Center Outpatient Services

LR 2493 FAILED

An Act To Improve Intensive Behavioral Health and Public Safety Case
Management Services by Providing a Pay Increase to Intensive Case
Managers

Representative Bickford of Auburn
LR 2378 PASSED
An Act To Create Affordable Agricultural Homesteads

Senator Black of Franklin
LR 2220 FAILED

Page 3 of 34 Office of the Executive Director 11/12/2021 4:54:08 PM
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130th Legislature - Second Regular Session
Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action
Senator Black of Franklin
An Act To Allow Plantations To Vote on Adult Use Marijuana Facilities and
Stores and Medical Marijuana Facilities and Stores
LR 2400 FAILED
An Act To Create the Logging Contractor Relations Program
LR 2480 FAILED

Resolve, Directing the Department of Inland Fisheries and Wildlife and the
Department of Environmental Protection To Assess the Ecological Effects of
Glyphosate-containing Herbicide Formulations and Other Herbicide
Formulations Sprayed for Forest Management

Representative Blume of York
LR 2327 FAILED

An Act To Encourage Climate Change Education in Maine Public Schools

Senator Breen of Cumberland

LR 2144 PASSED
An Act To Require Screening for Cytomegalovirus in Certain Newborn
Infants

LR 2146 FAILED

An Act To Exempt Specialty License Plates Already in the Process of Being
Created from the Moratorium on the Approval of Any New Motor Vehicle
Registration Plates
LR 2163 WITHDRAWN

An Act To Promote Workforce Development in Maine

LR 2247 FAILED
An Act To Improve the Department of Agriculture, Conservation and
Forestry's Low-cost Spaying and Neutering Program

LR 2510 PASSED

An Act To Protect School Officials from Harassment and Abuse

Representative Brennan of Portland
LR 2120 FAILED

An Act Regarding Compensation for College Athletes in the University of
Maine System

Page 4 of 34 Office of the Executive Director 11/12/2021 4:54:08 PM
P8



130th Legislature - Second Regular Session
Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action
Representative Brennan of Portland
LR 2130 FAILED

Resolve, Directing the Department of Education To Develop Protocols and
Plans for Ensuring That All Relevant Services Are Included in an
Individualized Education Program

LR 2131 PASSED

Resolve, Regarding MaineCare Funding for Maine Schools

LR 2152 FAILED
An Act Regarding College Tuition Waivers for Disadvantaged Students

Senator Brenner of Cumberland
LR 2187 FAILED

Resolve, To Require the Public Utilities Commission To Conduct a Study of
Rate Design for Customers Whose Administrative Customer Charges Exceed
Their Overall Utility Bill

LR 2252 PASSED

An Act To Allow Exceptions to the Height Limitations under the Shoreland
Zoning Laws

LR 2268 FAILED

An Act To Provide Tax Benefits to Persons Constructing Accessory Dwelling
Units on Residential-zoned Property

LR 2329 PASSED

An Act To Address Burnout among Nurses and improve Patient Care

LR 2330 FAILED
An Act To Adjust the Personal Property Tax Exemption for Farm Machinery

LR 2331 FAILED
An Act To Enable Participation in the Physical Therapy Compact

LR 2412 WITHDRAWN

An Act To Establish the Position of Deputy Secretary of State for Diversity,
Equity and Inclusion in the Department of the Secretary of State

Representative Bryant of Windham
LR 2177 FAILED
An Act Regarding Abandoned Motor Vehicle Fines and Disposal

Page 5 of 34 Office of the Executive Director 11/12/2021 4:54:08 PM
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130th Legislature - Second Regular Session
Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action
Representative Bryant of Windham

LR 2304 FAILED

An Act To Increase the Limit for Storage Fees for Abandoned Vehicles

Representative Caiazzo of Scarborough
LR 2360 FAILED

An Act To Amend the Testing Requirements for Adult Use Marijuana

Representative Cardone of Bangor
LR 2248 FAILED

An Act To Limit Parking Reserved for Persons with Disabilities to Vehicles
Transporting Persons with Disabilities

Senator Carney of Cumberland
LR 2402 PASSED

An Act To Maintain Consistency among Maine's Nondiscrimination Statutes

Senator Chipman of Cumberland
LR 2263 FAILED
An Act To Improve the Property Tax System

Senator Claxton of Androscoggin
LR 2277 FAILED

An Act To Enhance Access to, Education Regarding and Patient and
Community Safety in Maine's Medical Use of Marijuana Program

LR 2278 PASSED

An Act To Support Improvements in Child Protective Services

LR 2279 PASSED

An Act Regarding the So-called Leveraging Investments so Families Can
Thrive Report Produced by the Department of Health and Human Services

LR 2284 FAILED
An Act To Promote Nonprofit Organizations That Support the Training and
Safety of Service and Working Dogs through a Sales Tax Exemption

LR 2335 PASSED
An Act To Establish the 340B Drug Pricing Nondiscrimination Act

Page 6 of 34 Office of the Executive Director 11/12/2021 4:54:08 PM
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130th Legislature - Second Regular Session
Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action

Senator Claxton of Androscoggin

LR 2355 PASSED
An Act To Improve the Quality and Affordability of Primary Health Care

Representative Cloutier of Lewiston

LR 2261 FAILED
An Act To Restore Funding to the State's Tobacco Prevention and Control
Program

Representative Collings of Portland

LR 2434 FAILED
An Act To Protect Communities from Water Extraction That Is Detrimental to
Aquifers

LR 2457 PASSED
An Act To Review State Lands or Waterways That Have Sacred, Traditional
or Other Significance to the Wabanaki Tribes

LR 2458 FAILED
An Act To Add a Tribal Member to the Baxter State Park Authority

LR 2483 FAILED
An Act To Increase the Tax on Mining Operations to 10 Percent

LR 2500 FAILED
An Act To Place a 3 Percent Income Tax Surcharge on Incomes over
$1,000,000

LR 2509 FAILED
An Act Regarding Tribal Gaming

LR 2516 FAILED

Resolve, To Study Discrimination in Section 8 Rental Housing

Representative Copeland of Saco

LR 2464 FAILED
Resolve, To Create a Task Force To Study the Water Quality of Saco Bay
and To Determine Pollution Sources

LR 2465 FAILED

Page 7 of 34 Office of the Executive Director 11/12/2021 4:54:08 PM
P11



130th Legislature - Second Regular Session
Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action
Representative Copeland of Saco
An Act To Protect Access to Workers' Compensation Benefits

Representative Corey of Windham
LR 2388 FAILED

An Act To Ensure the Integrity of County and Regional Dispatchers through
the Use of Polygraph Examinations

Representative Costain of Plymouth
LR 2324 FAILED

An Act To Require the Immediate Transfer of Individuals in County Jails to
State Mental Health Facilities upon Completion of Judicial Review of
Involuntary Hospitalization Proceedings

Representative Crafts of Newcastle
LR 2467 FAILED
An Act Regarding the Regulation of Electrical Work and Equipment on Boats

Representative Craven of Lewiston

LR 2141 FAILED
An Act To Safeguard the Privacy of Individuals Applying for Guardianship in
Probate Court

LR 2142 PASSED
An Act To Provide Funding for Guardians Ad Litem

LR 2249 FAILED
An Act To Provide Personal Mailboxes to All Tenants of Multiple-dwelling
Houses

LR 2429 PASSED

An Act To Make MaineCare Rules Pertaining to Global Home and
Community-based Services Waiver Programs and Person-centered Planning
and Settings Major Substantive Rules

Representative Crockett of Portland
LR 2265 FAILED

An Act To Allow Wine Retailers with 2 or More Licensed Facilities To Freely
Transfer Wine between Approved Facilities

Page 8 of 34 Office of the Executive Director 11/12/2021 4:54:08 PM
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130th Legislature - Second Regular Session
Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action
Representative Cuddy of Winterport

LR 2473 FAILED

An Act To Ensure Maine Citizens Benefit from Renewable Energy Generation
Projects by Establishing Job Quality and Hiring Standards

Senator Curry of Waldo
LR 2119 PASSED
An Act To Enhance the Child Welfare Ombudsman Program

LR 2143 PASSED
An Act To Clarify and Update the Maine Seed Capital Tax Credit Program

LR 2441 PASSED

An Act To Clarify the Boundary between Waldo County and Knox County in
Penobscot Bay

LR 2456 PASSED

An Act To Build More Sustainable Rural Ambulance Services

Senator Cyrway of Kennebec
LR 2184 FAILED

An Act Regarding Funding for Educational Programs for Drug Treatment
Facilities

Senator Daughtry of Cumberland
LR 2258 FAILED
An Act To Allow Customers To Opt Out of Paper Delivery Tickets

LR 2262 PASSED

An Act To Amend the Laws Governing Storm Water Management for
Mountain Bike Trails

LR 2297 FAILED
An Act To Establish a Drinking Water Quality Council in the State

LR 2347 PASSED
An Act To Establish the Maine Spaceport Corporation

LR 2375 PASSED

An Act To Expand Nursing Education Programs

Page 9 of 34 Office of the Executive Director 11/12/2021 4:54:08 PM
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130th Legislature - Second Regular Session
Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action
Senator Daughtry of Cumberland
LR 2454 FAILED
Aanct To Allow the Use of Speed Traps with Cameras To Promote Public
Safety

Senator Davis, Sr. of Piscataquis

LR 2164 PASSED
An Act Regarding the Retirement of Law Enforcement Officers under the
Participating Local District Retirement Program

LR 2169 FAILED
An Act Regarding Illegal School Entry

LR 2175 FAILED
An Act To Amend the Statewide Fire Code

LR 2176 FAILED
An Act To Prevent the Theft of Catalytic Converters

LR 2231 PASSED

Resolve, To Name Bridges in the Town of Milo for Veterans Who Died during
the Vietnam War

Senator Deschambault of York
LR 2303 FAILED

An Act To Prohibit Invasion of Privacy on Property by Surveillance Cameras

LR 2361 FAILED
An Act To Establish the Safe Homes Program

Senator Diamond of Cumberland

LR 2133 PASSED
An Act To Strengthen the Office of the Child Welfare Services Ombudsman
by Providing for Increased Staffing

LR 2134 PASSED

An Act To Prioritize the Prosecution of Child Murder Cases

LR 2228 FAILED

An Act To Prohibit the Use of License Plate Coverings That Obstruct a Clear
View of the Plate

Page 10 of 34 Office of the Executive Director 11/12/2021 4:54:08 PM
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130th Legislature - Second Regular Session
Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action
Senator Diamond of Cumberland
LR 2232 PASSED
An Act To Establish Ongoing Monitoring of Maine's Child Protective Services
LR 2288 PASSED

An Act To Address Employee Retention at the Maine State Police Crime
Laboratory and the Computer Crimes Unit in the Department of Public
Safety

Senator Dill of Penobscot

LR 2159 FAILED
An Act To Provide Funding for the Purchase of Maine Public Employees
Retirement System Service Credit at a Subsidized Cost by Certain Persons
Who Served in the Armed Forces of the United States

LR 2179 FAILED
An Act To Allow Deferment of a Moose Permit When More than One Is
Granted to the Same Household

LR 2180 PASSED
An Act To Expand the Acreage Available for Agricultural Use by the
Department of Corrections

LR 2181 FAILED
An Act To Allow the Department of Corrections To Dig a Well in the Bud
Leavitt Wildlife Management Area

LR 2182 FAILED
An Act To Restrict the Sale of Used Catalytic Converters

LR 2253 FAILED
An Act To Allow for Expungement of Certain Criminal Records and To
Expunge Criminal and Civil Records Related to Marijuana Activities Legalized
by the Voters of Maine

LR 2260 PASSED
An Act To Change the Requirements for the Sales of Used Catalytic
Converters

LR 2474 FAILED

An Act Providing for Nondiscrimination in Access to Anatomical Donation
and Organ Transplantation
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130th Legislature - Second Regular Session
Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action
Representative Dillingham of Oxford

LR 2301 PASSED

An Act To Authorize Certain Off-premises Sales of Adult Use Marijuana

LR 2438 PASSED
An Act To Clarify the Laws Related to the Use of Medical Marijuana and
Workers' Compensation

LR 2439 PASSED

An Act To Direct the Department of Health and Human Services To Clarify
and Amend the Rules Related to Micropigmentation Practitioners

Representative Dodge of Belfast
LR 2395 FAILED

Resolve, To Protect Funding for the State Employee Health Care Program

Representative Dunphy of Old Town
LR 2332 PASSED

An Act To Allow Unorganized Territory School Staff To Receive Annualized
Pay

Representative Evangelos of Friendship

LR 2254 FAILED
An Act To Amend the Composition and Powers of the Deadly Force Review
Panel

LR 2255 FAILED
An Act To Repeal the Law Regarding the County Jail Reimbursement Fee

Representative Evans of Dover-Foxcroft

LR 2271 PASSED
An Act To Encourage Job Growth in the Forestry Sector through Tax
Incentives

LR 2451 PASSED

An Act To Improve Health Care Affordability and Increase Options for
Comprehensive Coverage for Individuals and Small Businesses in Maine

Senator Farrin of Somerset
LR 2127 FAILED

Page 12 of 34 Office of the Executive Director 11/12/2021 4:54:08 PM
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130th Legislature - Second Regular Session
Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action
Senator Farrin of Somerset
An Act Regarding the Authorization of Services Performed by Emergency
Medical Services Personnel
LR 2149 FAILED

An Act To Prevent State Government from Influencing Health Care Decisions

Representative Faulkingham of Winter Harbor
LR 2422 FAILED
An Act To Retain and Expand Job Opportunities in the Health Care Industry

LR 2463 FAILED
An Act To Create a Legal Defense Fund for the Maine Lobster Industry

Representative Fay of Raymond
LR 2210 PASSED
An Act To Continue Supporting Safe Drinking Water for Maine Families

LR 2453 PASSED

An Act To Increase Maine's Veterinary Workforce and Keep Maine Farms
Healthy through a Scholarship Program

Speaker Fecteau of Biddeford
LR 2299 PASSED

An Act To Implement the Recommendations of the Commission To Increase
Housing Opportunities in Maine by Studying Zoning and Land Use
Restrictions
LR 2356 PASSED

An Act To Promote Labor Education

LR 2468 TABLED
An Act To Require Cultural Competency Training in State-licensed Assisted
Living Facilities, Nursing Homes, Rehabilitation Facilities and Independent
Living Facilities

Representative Geiger of Rockland

LR 2340 FAILED
An Act To Make State Education Subsidies More Equitable

LR 2354 FAILED
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130th Legislature - Second Regular Session
Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action
Representative Geiger of Rockland
An Act To Create a Livable Wage across Maine
LR 2410 FAILED
An Act To Transition to Publicly Funded Early Childhood Education
LR 2411 FAILED

An Act To Address Overdue Maintenance at Owls Head State Park

Representative Gere of Kennebunkport
LR 2390 FAILED

An Act To Amend the Maine Jobs, Trade and Democracy Act

LR 2481 FAILED

An Act To Improve the Educational Climate and Safety in Maine Schools by
Reducing Bias and Harassment

Representative Gramlich of Old Orchard Beach

LR 2504 FAILED
An Act To Protect the Public from Exposure to Toxic Perfluoroalkyl and
Polyfluoroalkyl Substances from Fish Consumption

LR 2505 PASSED
An Act To Strengthen Child Sexual Abuse Laws and the Sex Offender
Registry Protocol

LR 2506 FAILED
An Act To Implement Best Practices Regarding Children's Behavioral and
Mental Health Care

LR 2507 FAILED

An Act To Ensure Low-income Families and Children with Special Needs Can
Access Aftercare School Programs

Representative Greenwood of Wales
LR 2488 FAILED

An Act To Protect Maine Citizens from Discrimination by Including
Vaccination Status as a Protected Class

LR 2495 FAILED
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130th Legislature - Second Regular Session
Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action
Representative Greenwood of Wales
An Act To Protect Maine Families by Removing Department of Health and
Human Services Administrative Appeal Hearings from Department Oversight
LR 2499 FAILED
An Act To Restore Religious and Philosophical Exemptions from Vaccination
Requirements
LR 2515 FAILED
An Act To Protect Students in Maine Public Schools from Mandatory Masking
Representative Grohoski of Ellsworth
LR 2377 FAILED
An Act To Improve Safety for Personnel Providing Public Services along
Roads
LR 2391 PASSED
An Act To Define "Discrete Electric Generating Facility"
LR 2489 FAILED
An Act To Strengthen Maine's Clean Energy Economy through the Use of
Community Choice Aggregation Entities
Senator Guerin of Penobscot
LR 2162 FAILED
An Act To Allow Health Care Workers To Direct Their Own Health Care
Choices

Representative Harnett of Gardiner
LR 2256 FAILED

An Act To Ensure Constitutionally Adequate Contact with Counsel

LR 2382 PASSED
An Act To Amend the Remote Meeting Law in Maine's Freedom of Access
Act
LR 2414 PASSED
An Act Clarifying the Right to Legal Representation for Individuals Subject to
Guardianship
Page 15 of 34 Office of the Executive Director 11/12/2021 4:54:08 PM
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130th Legislature - Second Regular Session

Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests

October 25, 2021

Representative Hasenfus of Readfield
LR 2466

Resolve, Directing the Interagency Task Force on Invasive Aquatic Plants
and Nuisance Species To Recommend Ways To Reduce the Threat of
Further Infestations

Representative Hepler of Woolwich
LR 2316

An Act To Provide Funding to Municipalities Severely Infested with Browntail
Moths

Senator Hickman of Kennebec

LR 2121
Resolve, Authorizing the Maine National Guard To Sell Certain Property in
Hallowell

LR 2123
An Act To Expand the 1998 Special Retirement Plan To Include Employees
Who Work for the Office of Chief Medical Examiner

LR 2339
An Act To Help Alleviate Maine's Housing Shortage through Changes to
Zoning Laws

LR 2440
An Act To Strengthen the Maine Civil Rights Act

LR 2511

An Act To Restructure the Administration of the Bureau of Alcoholic
Beverages and Lottery Operations

Representative Hutchins of Penobscot

LR 2337
An Act To Ensure Free Expression on Campuses of the University of Maine
System by Promoting Campus Clubs
LR 2338
An Act To Ensure the Participation of Parents and Taxpayers at Local School
Board Meetings
LR 2342
An Act To Protect Voter Integrity and Voter Authority over Absentee Ballots
Page 16 of 34 Office of the Executive Director
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130th Legislature - Second Regular Session
Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action
Representative Hutchins of Penobscot
LR 2343 FAILED
An Act To Ensure Protection of the Ocean Bottom within Maine's 3-mile
Boundary
Representative Hymanson of York
LR 2171 FAILED
An Act To Establish a Commission To Study the Health Effects of 5G Cellular
Towers
LR 2172 FAILED
An Act To Allow Certain Nonresidents Access to Department of Health and
Human Services Waiting Lists for Services
LR 2482 FAILED

Resolve, To Ensure the Continuation of Services to Maine Children and
Families through the Alternative Response Program

President Jackson of Aroostook

LR 2160 PASSED
An Act To Establish a Disaster Relief Fund for Potato Farmers Adversely
Affected by Drought Conditions

LR 2161 PASSED
An Act To Amend the Charter of the St. Francis Water District

LR 2167 PASSED
An Act To Clarify the Role of the Legislature in Sustaining Good-paying Jobs
in the Forest Products Industry and To Promote Healthy Rivers

LR 2275 PASSED
An Act To Amend the Caribou Utilities District Charter To Include Broadband
Services

LR 2287 FAILED
An Act To Fix Split Retirement Benefits for Certain State Employees

LR 2289 FAILED
An Act To Create the Office of Federal Liaison for Maine's Heritage Lobster
Industry
LR 2290 PASSED
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Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action

President Jackson of Aroostook
An Act To Address Inequality in Retirement for Department of Corrections
Supervisors

LR 2298 PASSED
An Act To Ensure Access to Prescription Contraceptives

LR 2326 PASSED
An Act To Clarify the Laws Related to Online Raffle Tickets To Reflect the
True Intent of Those Laws

LR 2359 PASSED
An Act To Expand Access to Justice in Rural Maine through Legal Education

LR 2398 PASSED
An Act To Ensure Equitable Geographic Access to Long-term Care Services
in the Department of Health and Human Services

LR 2416 PASSED
An Act To Support Health Care Workers by Providing Hazard
Reimbursements and Hazard Pay

LR 2425 PASSED
Resolve, To Assist Long-term Care Facilities

Senator Keim of Oxford

LR 2147 FAILED
An Act To Protect Autonomy in Medical Care

Representative Kryzak of Acton

LR 2436 FAILED
An Act To Amend the State's Tax Laws

Representative Landry of Farmington

LR 2225 FAILED
An Act To Promote the Accessibility and Transparency of Maine's School
Boards

Senator Lawrence of York

LR 2305 PASSED
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Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action
Senator Lawrence of York

An Act To Repeal and Replace the Charter of the Ogunquit Sewer District

LR 2427 FAILED
An Act To Update Maine's Felony Drug Possession Law

Representative Libby of Auburn
LR 2419 FAILED
An Act Regarding Guaranteed Educational Access Resources for Students

LR 2428 FAILED

An Act To Clarify Medical Exemption Allowances under State Law

LR 2449 FAILED

An Act To Ensure Services for Seniors during a State of Emergency by
Waiving the Certificate of Need Requirement for Nursing and Long-term
Care Facilities

Representative Lookner of Portland

LR 2251 FAILED
An Act To Prevent the Use of Prone Restraints on Youths Held in
Department of Corrections Facilities

LR 2475 FAILED

An Act To Prohibit the Use of Choke Holds and Prone Restraints by Public
Employees

Senator Luchini of Hancock
LR 2132 PASSED

An Act To Make Permanent the Changes to the Liquor Laws Made by Public
Law 2021, Chapters 3 and 91

LR 2165 FAILED
An Act Regarding the Payment of College Athletes

LR 2226 PASSED

An Act To Create a Framework for Maine's Spirits Contract

LR 2307 PASSED
Resolve, Directing the Department of Health and Human Services To
Provide Notice of Nursing Home Closures
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Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action
Senator Luchini of Hancock
LR 2373 PASSED
An Act Regarding Contributing to Candidates and Political Action
Committees
LR 2484 PASSED

An Act To Clarify the Exemption from Income Tax and Pass-through Entity
Withholding Tax Liability for Certain Out-of-state Suppliers of Spirits
Purchased by the Bureau of Alcoholic Beverages and Lottery Operations

Representative Madigan of Waterville

LR 2317 PASSED
An Act Regarding Access to Telehealth Behavioral Health Services during
Public Health Emergencies

LR 2318 FAILED
An Act To Establish Limits on the Number of Hours Worked By and
Workloads of Child Protective Services Workers

LR 2319 FAILED
An Act To Establish a Board To Oversee County Officials

LR 2320 FAILED

An Act To Exempt Sanitizing Products from Sales Tax and Other State Fees

LR 2383 FAILED

An Act To Protect MaineCare Recipients from Prior Authorization and Step
Therapy for Medications Addressing Serious Mental Iliness

LR 2490 FAILED
An Act To Protect Children in Shared Custody

LR 2491 FAILED

An Act To Improve Services for Persons Who Are Experiencing
Homelessness

Representative Martin of Eagle Lake
LR 2385 PASSED

An Act To Amend the Laws Regarding Education Service Centers

LR 2418 PASSED
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130th Legislature - Second Regular Session
Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action
Representative Martin of Eagle Lake
An Act To Provide Clarity and Assistance to Rural Maine Providers in the
Implementation of the Medicaid Home and Community-based Services
Waiver Rule
LR 2497 FAILED

An Act Regarding Green Crab Fishing

Representative Mason of Lisbon
LR 2276 PASSED

An Act To Require Law Enforcement Agencies To Retain Serial Numbers of
Stolen Firearms

Representative Mathieson of Kittery
LR 2156 FAILED

An Act Regarding Special Education Funding for So-called Minimum Receiver
Districts

Representative Matlack of St. George
LR 2501 FAILED

An Act To Provide Municipal Shellfish Conservation Programs Greater
Flexibility in Protecting Restricted Shellfish Growing Areas

Senator Maxmin of Lincoln

LR 2357 PASSED
An Act To Improve the Calculation of Payments from Schools That Send
Tuition Students to Career and Technical Education Programs

LR 2460 PASSED
An Act To Ensure Legislative Review of Rules for Maine's Medical Use of
Marijuana Act

LR 2476 PASSED

An Act To Strengthen Maine's Good Samaritan Laws

Representative McCrea of Fort Fairfield

LR 2230 TABLED
An Act To Clarify the Retroactive Granting of Sick Leave Days to Public
School Employees Affected by COVID-19

LR 2435 FAILED
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Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action
Representative McCrea of Fort Fairfield

An Act To Provide Quality Child Care in Northern Maine

Representative McCreight of Harpswell
LR 2233 PASSED

An Act To Have Maine Join the Interstate Counseling Compact To Address
Inequities in Access to Clinical Counseling Services and Increase Maine's
Provider Workforce
LR 2386 PASSED

An Act To Ensure Safe Entry and Access for People Seeking Health Care

Representative McDonald of Stonington

LR 2158 PASSED
An Act To Extend the Legal Hours for Harvesting Lobster in the Month of
September

LR 2334 FAILED
An Act To Investigate Perfluoroalkyl and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances
Discharge into Maine's Waterways

LR 2384 FAILED

An Act To Promote Community Health and Safety by Supporting Overdose
Prevention Services

Representative Meyer of Eliot
LR 2341 FAILED

An Act To Develop Maine's Workforce and Improve Economic Security for
Maine's Families

Representative Millett of Cape Elizabeth

LR 2145 PASSED
An Act To Strengthen the Governance of the Maine Community College
System and University of Maine System

LR 2155 FAILED

Resolve, To Direct the Department of Health and Human Services and the
Department of Labor To Analyze the Prevalence of Maine Citizens Suffering
from Long-term Symptoms Related to Acute COVID-19 Infection

LR 2245 FAILED
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Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action
Representative Millett of Cape Elizabeth
An Act To Establish Green Building Standards for Maine
LR 2323 PASSED
An Act To Ensure Health Insurance Coverage for Certain Adults with
Disabilities
LR 2403 PASSED
An Act To Amend the Enforcement Provisions of the Law Governing Earned
Paid Leave

Senator Miramant of Knox

LR 2188 FAILED
An Act To Enact the Maine Workplace Transparency Act To Regulate
Employment Arbitration Agreements

LR 2219 FAILED

An Act To Amend the Traffic Safety Laws To Prevent Risky Pedestrian Road
Activity

Senator Moore of Washington
LR 2217 FAILED
An Act To Establish Statewide Residency Restrictions for Sex Offenders

LR 2512 FAILED

An Act To Address Maine's Suicide and Opioid Crises through the
Construction of Affordable Recovery Facilities in Underserved Areas of the
State

Representative Morales of South Portland

LR 2314 FAILED
An Act To Reduce Homelessness by Improving the General Assistance
Program for Recipients and Landlords

LR 2333 FAILED

An Act To Improve Access to Behavioral Health Services by Limiting Cost
Sharing by Insurers

Representative Moriarty of Cumberland
LR 2189 FAILED

An Act To Amend the Laws Governing the Criminal Use of Laser Pointers
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Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action
Representative Moriarty of Cumberland

LR 2368 FAILED
An Act To Amend the Credit for Educational Opportunity

Representative Morris of Turner
LR 2325 FAILED
An Act To Regulate Litigation Financing

LR 2415 FAILED
An Act To Promote Diversity in Financial Product Offerings by Changing the
Minimum Nonforfeiture Amount for Deferred Annuities to 0.15%

LR 2472 FAILED

An Act Regarding Free Access to Accident Reports

Representative O'Connell of Brewer
LR 2136 FAILED

Resolve, To Require the Maine Board of Pharmacy To Review Work
Practices and Treatment of Pharmacists

Representative O'Neil of Saco

LR 2446 FAILED
An Act To Provide Textbook Cost Assistance for High School Students
Enrolled in Early College Courses

LR 2477 FAILED

An Act To Protect the Privacy of Maine Residents

LR 2478 FAILED
An Act To Create a Task Force To Study and Catalog the Use of Artificial
Intelligence in State Government

LR 2487 FAILED

An Act Regarding Board of Environmental Protection Review of Projects of
Statewide Significance

Representative Perkins of Oakland
LR 2374 FAILED

An Act To Establish Certain Exemptions to Required Immunizations
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Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action
Representative Perry of Calais
LR 2358 WITHDRAWN

An Act To Define "Substance-exposed Infant"

Representative Perry of Bangor

LR 2135 FAILED
An Act To Require That Information Regarding the Distance between the
Pupils of a Patient's Eyes Be Included Free of Charge on All Eye
Prescriptions

LR 2392 FAILED
An Act To Allow for a Standard Deviation in Potency for the Manufacturing
of Adult Use Edible Marijuana Products

LR 2393 FAILED
An Act To Modernize Maine's Rental Vehicle Industry and Equalize the Tax
Rate Imposed on Rental Vehicles

LR 2479 FAILED

An Act To Modernize Maine's Adult Use Marijuana Laws

Representative Pierce of Falmouth
LR 2259 FAILED

An Act To Prevent COVID-19 Transmission in Maine Schools

LR 2401 PASSED

An Act To Protect Election Integrity by Regulating Possession of Ballots and
Voting Machines and Devices

Representative Pluecker of Warren
LR 2221 FAILED

Resolve, To Protect Maine's Egg Producers

LR 2227 PASSED
Resolve, To Prohibit the Contamination of Clean Soils with So-called Forever
Chemicals
LR 2370 FAILED
An Act To Standardize Department of Corrections Reporting to the
Legislature
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Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action
Representative Pluecker of Warren

LR 2376 FAILED

Resolve, To Study Driver's License Suspensions

Representative Poirier of Skowhegan
LR 2404 FAILED
An Act To Expand Working Hours for Minors

Senator Pouliot of Kennebec
LR 2137 FAILED

An Act To Allow Bars with an Occupancy of 30 or Fewer Persons To Have
Only One Bathroom

LR 2138 FAILED

An Act To Allow Organizations Other Than Schools To Have Yellow Buses
with Red Flashing Lights and Stop Signs

LR 2139 FAILED

An Act To Allow a Person To Appeal a Suspension of Driving Privileges That
Is Based on a Doctor's Report to the Bureau of Motor Vehicles

LR 2150 FAILED
An Act To Prohibit Mandatory Vaccinations

LR 2154 FAILED

An Act Regarding the Expansion of the 1998 Special Retirement Plan to
Civilian Employees of the Department of Public Safety Crime Laboratory and
Computer Crimes Unit

LR 2214 FAILED

An Act Regarding the Novel Engineering Journeyman Training Program

LR 2229 FAILED

Resolve, To Address Maine's Direct Access Worker Shortage

Senator Rafferty of York

LR 2309 FAILED
An Act To Increase Student Learning Potential through the Use of High-
impact Tutoring

LR 2336 FAILED
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Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action
Senator Rafferty of York
An Act To Protect Consumers' Privacy by Giving Them Greater Control of
Their Data
LR 2426 FAILED

An Act To Establish the State of Maine Infrastructure Bank

Representative Rielly of Westbrook
LR 2234 FAILED

An Act To Amend the Authorizing Statutes of the Maine Commission for
Community Service To Incorporate the Maine Climate Corps and Address
Climate Challenges

LR 2235 FAILED

An Act To Require Emergency Contact and Crisis Hotline Numbers To Be
Included on Student Identification Cards

Representative Roberts of South Berwick
LR 2420 FAILED

An Act To Increase Access to Driver's Licenses for Adults

LR 2423 FAILED

An Act To Increase Access to Driver Education

LR 2448 FAILED

Resolve, Directing the Department of Professional and Financial Regulation
To Conduct a Sunrise Review of General Contractors

LR 2455 PASSED

An Act To Provide Consistency in the Laws Regarding Domestic Partnership

Representative Roeder of Bangor
LR 2272 FAILED

An Act To Remove Discriminatory Restrictions Regarding Real Property

LR 2273 PASSED

An Act To Allow Pharmacists To Dispense an Emergency Supply of Chronic
Maintenance Drugs

Representative Rudnicki of Fairfield
LR 2486 FAILED

Page 27 of 34 Office of the Executive Director 11/12/2021 4:54:08 PM
P 31



130th Legislature - Second Regular Session
Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action
Representative Rudnicki of Fairfield

An Act To Ensure In-state Tuition for Postsecondary Students Who Are
Maine Residents for the Purpose of Voting

Representative Sachs of Freeport
LR 2185 FAILED
An Act To Require the Use of Mufflers on Airboats

Representative Salisbury of Westbrook
LR 2485 FAILED

An Act Concerning School Security Alarms

Representative Sampson of Alfred

LR 2407 FAILED
An Act To Promote Government Accountability for Maine's COVID-19
Recovery

LR 2409 FAILED
Resolve, To Establish the Task Force To Study Methods To Mitigate the
Impacts of the Opioid Epidemic on Rural Communities

LR 2413 FAILED
An Act To End the Public Health Emergency

Senator Sanborn of Cumberland

LR 2170 PASSED
An Act Regarding Point-of-dispensing Sites for Immunizations against
COovID-19

LR 2363 PASSED

An Act To Require Health Insurance Carriers and Pharmacy Benefits
Managers To Appropriately Account for Cost-sharing Amounts Paid on
Behalf of Insureds
LR 2364 FAILED

Resolve, To Identify and Report Prescription Drugs with Unsupported Price
Increases

Representative Sheehan of Biddeford
LR 2461 FAILED
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Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
October 25, 2021

Action
Representative Sheehan of Biddeford
An Act To Support Restaurants in the State through Service Charge
Revenues
LR 2462 PASSED

An Act To Amend the Laws Governing Name Changes

Representative Stetkis of Canaan
LR 2442 FAILED

An Act To Establish Education Curriculum Transparency

Senator Stewart of Aroostook

LR 2125 FAILED
An Act To Exempt Certain Motor Vehicle Dealers from Display Area Size
Requirements

LR 2129 FAILED

An Act Regarding Persons Whose Parental Rights Have Been Terminated

LR 2269 FAILED

An Act To Guarantee Grandparents the Right to Visitation with Their
Grandchildren

Representative Stover of Boothbay

LR 2292 FAILED
An Act To Clarify the Application of the Maine Human Rights Act to Persons
Actively Using Illegal Drugs in Recovery Residences or Sober Living Facilities

LR 2294 PASSED
An Act To Amend the Charter of the Boothbay Harbor Sewer District To Set
the Terms of Its Trustees at 3 Years

LR 2313 PASSED
An Act To Address the Economic Impact of Federal Closures on Maine's
Lobster Industry

LR 2399 PASSED

An Act To Improve the Maine Child Welfare Services Ombudsman Program
by Providing Additional Resources
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Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
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Action
Representative Supica of Bangor

LR 2447 FAILED

An Act To Remove a Significant Administrative Burden from Maine Marijuana
Businesses That Use the State's Marijuana Tracking System

Representative Sylvester of Portland
LR 2372 FAILED
An Act To Establish a Worker and Employer Bill of Rights

LR 2421 FAILED

An Act To Support Law Enforcement Officers, Corrections Officers, E-9-1-1
Dispatchers, Firefighters and Emergency Medical Services Persons
Diagnosed with Post-traumatic Stress Disorder
LR 2445 FAILED

An Act To Strengthen Water Districts and Keep Maine's Water Clean

LR 2452 FAILED

Resolve, To Study the Legislature as a Workforce and Suggest
Improvements To Ensure a Citizens' Legislature

Representative Talbot Ross of Portland
LR 2140 PASSED

An Act To Establish the Provision of Emergency Medical Services as an
Essential Service

LR 2352 PASSED
An Act To Expand Access to Mental Health and Crisis Care

LR 2353 TABLED

An Act Regarding Disciplinary and Grievance Policy Procedures and
Outcomes in State Correctional Facilities

LR 2498 PASSED

Resolve, Directing the Maine Human Rights Commission To Extend Its Pilot
Program To Investigate and Report on Incidents of Harassment Due to
Housing Status, Lack of Employment and Other Issues

LR 2502 PASSED
An Act To Facilitate Data Collection in Order To Eliminate Profiling in Maine

LR 2503 PASSED

Page 30 of 34 Office of the Executive Director 11/12/2021 4:54:08 PM
P 34



130th Legislature - Second Regular Session
Legislative Council Action on Legislative Bill Requests
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Action
Representative Talbot Ross of Portland
An Act To Increase Opportunities in the Cannabis Industry by Removing
Restrictions Related to Certain Convictions for Drug Offenses
LR 2508 PASSED

Resolve, To Reestablish and Continue the Work of the Criminal Records
Review Committee

Representative Tepler of Topsham
LR 2244 FAILED

An Act To Improve Children's Mental Health by Requiring Insurance
Coverage for COVID-19-related Mental Health Treatment

Representative Theriault of China

LR 2443 PASSED
An Act To Amend the Laws Governing the Maine Length of Service Award
Program

LR 2444 PASSED

An Act To Attract and Retain Firefighters Using the Maine Length of Service
Award Program

Senator Timberlake of Androscoggin
LR 2148 FAILED

An Act To Preserve the Freedom and Rights of the People of the State of
Maine Regarding Vaccinations

LR 2151 FAILED

Resolve, To Allow Ronald Caron To Sue the State

LR 2394 FAILED
An Act To Prevent the Prohibition of the Use of Refrigerants

LR 2496 FAILED

An Act To Give Back Excess Revenue to the People of the State of Maine

Representative Tuell of East Machias
LR 2246 FAILED

An Act Requiring Local Approval of the Machias Causeway Replacement
Project
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Action
Representative Tuell of East Machias

LR 2405 FAILED

An Act To Promote Maine Seafood

LR 2406 FAILED

An Act To Incrementally Change the Maine Public Employees Retirement
System Penalty for Early Retirement for Members Working as Educators in
the System from 1983 to 1993

LR 2408 FAILED
An Act To Address the School Bus Driver Shortage

Senator Vitelli of Sagadahoc
LR 2166 FAILED
An Act To Establish the Lobster Roll as the Maine State Sandwich

LR 2293 PASSED

An Act To Support Municipal Broadband Infrastructure through Incentives
and Competition

LR 2295 PASSED
An Act To Review Utility Rates

LR 2296 FAILED

An Act To Clarify the Definition and Functions of Long-term Care Pharmacies

LR 2300 FAILED

An Act To Promote Road Safety for Bicyclists and Pedestrians

LR 2302 PASSED
An Act To Facilitate Net Energy Generation Billing

LR 2381 PASSED

An Act To Improve Access to Transcripts and Diplomas

Representative Wadsworth of Hiram
LR 2494 FAILED

An Act To Exclude Capital Purchases from the Forestry Excise Tax
Calculation
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Action
Representative Warren of Hallowell
LR 2183 FAILED

An Act Regarding the Maine Information and Analysis Center

LR 2366 FAILED

An Act To Reduce the Percentage of Light Transmittance Required for Motor
Vehicle Windows

Representative White of Waterville
LR 2346 PASSED

An Act To Make Interfering with an Election Official a Class C Crime

LR 2397 TABLED

An Act To Clarify COVID-19 Sick Leave Reimbursement for School
Employees

Representative Williams of Bar Harbor
LR 2424 FAILED

An Act To Update and Clarify the Maine Medical Use of Marijuana Act and
Provide for Greater Transparency

Senator Woodsome of York
LR 2168 FAILED
An Act Regarding Credit Checks

LR 2267 FAILED

An Act To Prohibit the Electronic Scanning of Driver's Licenses by Certain
Retail Establishments

Representative Zager of Portland
LR 2437 PASSED

Resolve, To Establish the Advisory Panel To Better Understand and Make
Recommendations Regarding the Implications of Genome-editing
Technology for the Citizens of the State

Representative Zeigler of Montville
LR 2174 FAILED
An Act Regarding Public Utility Investments
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Action
Representative Zeigler of Montville
LR 2322 FAILED
An Act To Address Perfluoroalkyl and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances Pollution
from State-owned Waste Facilities
Total number of bills accepted: 107
Total number of bills tabled: 4
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Fiscal Briefing

November 18, 2021
Prepared by the Office of Fiscal & Program Review

1. General Fund Revenue Update (see attached)

Total General Fund Revenue - FY 2022 ($'s in Millions)

Budget Actual Var. % Var. Prior Year % Change
October $357.5 $421.8 $64.2 18.0% $366.4 15.1%
FYTD $1,5154 $1,708.7 $193.3 12.8% $1,387.0 23.2%

General Fund revenue was over budget by $64.2 million (18.0%) for the month of October and over
budget by $193.3 million (12.8%) for the fiscal year to date.

Individual income tax revenue was over budget by $24.8 million (16.2%) for the month and by $53.1
million (7.9%) for the fiscal year to date. For the month of October, a negative variance in individual
income tax withholding was offset by positive variances in the other individual income tax lines, and for
the fiscal year to date, only individual income tax refunds (more refunds paid than budgeted) was
experiencing a negative variance. Corporate income tax revenue was over budget by $15.1 million
(151.3%) for the month and by $50.4 million (73.4%) for the fiscal year to date. Sales and use tax
revenue for October (September sales) was over budget by $21.9 million (13.3%) for the month and by
$91.6 million (13.2%) for the fiscal year to date.

2. Highway Fund Revenue Update (see attached)

Total Highway Fund Revenue - FY 2022 ($'s in Millions)

Budget Actual Var. % Var. Prior Year % Change
October $30.6 $29.6 (50.9) -3.1% $29.9 -1.0%
FYTD $117.9 $121.4 $3.5 3.0% $116.2 4.5%

Highway Fund revenue was under budget by $0.9 million (-3.1%) for the month of October but over
budget by $3.5 million (3.0%) for the fiscal year to date.

Fuel taxes were under budget by $1.1 million for the month but over budget by $1.4 million (1.8%) for
the fiscal year to date. Motor vehicle registrations and fees were slightly below budget for the month
but over budget by $1.4 million (4.1%) for the fiscal year to date.

3. Cash Balances Update

The average balance in the cash pool for October was $3,800.1 million, an increase from September’s
average of $3,758.8 million. The increase was largely the result of increases in the General Fund and
Independent Agency Funds balances partially offset by a decrease in Highway Fund balances. The
average Highway Fund balance in October was $38.2 million, a decrease from September’s average of
$52.4 million, largely reflecting construction season spending.

4. Economic and Revenue Forecast Meetings

The Consensus Economic Forecasting Commission (CEFC) met on Friday, October 29" to review and

update the economic forecast for its November 1% report. The CEFC made relatively minor changes to

its April 2021 forecast. Of particular note, the CEFC forecast for personal income was revised up in all

years - from 5.0% to 5.2% in 2021, from 0.2% to 0.5% in 2022, from 4.1% to 4.6% in 2023, from 4.3%
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to 4.8% in 2024 and from 4.5% to 4.6% in 2025. These revisions reflect stronger assumed wage growth
for 2021 through 2024. The CEFC also revised its forecast for the Consumer Price Index (CPI) up for
2021 and 2022, from 2.4% to 4.4% in 2021 and from 2.2% to 3.5% in 2022, leaving 2022 through 2025
unchanged at 2.1% annually. This change reflects higher inflation in recent months due to several forces
that the CEFC expects will continue through early 2022, including an uptick in consumer spending due
to pent-up demand, supply bottlenecks and rising energy prices.

The CEFC summary of the major changes follows. The Revenue Forecasting Committee (RFC) is
scheduled to meet November 23rd to review and update the revenue forecast to comply with its statutory
reporting date of December 1%,

November 2021 vs. April 21 CEFC Forecast

Calendar Years 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Wage & Salary Employment (Annual Percentage Change)
CEFC Forecast 02/2020 0.5% 0.2% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
CEFC Forecast 04/2021 -6.4% 4.0% 2.3% 0.7% 0.1% 0.1%
CEFC Forecast 11/2021 -6.4% 3.7% 2.3% 1.0% 0.7% 0.7%
Difference 11/21 vs. 4/21 0.0% -0.3% 0.0% 0.3% 0.6% 0.6%
Personal Income (Annual Percentage Change)
CEFC Forecast 02/2020 4.1% 4.0% 3.7% 3.5% 3.5% 3.5%
CEFC Forecast 04/2021 7.6% 5.0% 0.2% 4.1% 4.3% 4.5%
CEFC Forecast 11/2021 7.9% 5.2% 0.5% 4.6% 4.8% 4.6%
Difference 11/21 vs. 4/21 0.3% 0.2% 0.3% 0.5% 0.5% 0.1%
Wage and Salary Income (Annual Percentage Change)
CEFC Forecast 02/2020 4.1% 3.7% 3.4% 3.2% 3.2% 3.2%
CEFC Forecast 04/2021 1.4% 5.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%
CEFC Forecast 11/2021 2.9% 5.5% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 4.0%
Difference 11/21 vs. 4/21 1.5% 0.5% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 0.0%
CPI (Annual Percentage Change)
CEFC Forecast 02/2020 1.9% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
CEFC Forecast 04/2021 1.2% 2.4% 2.2% 2.1% 2.1% 2.1%
CEFC Forecast 11/2021 1.2% 4.4% 3.5% 2.1% 2.1% 2.1%
Difference 11/21 vs. 4/21 0.0% 2.0% 1.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

From CEFC October 29, 2021 Meeting
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Revenue Category

Sales and Use Tax '

Service Provider Tax
Individual Income Tax
Corporate Income Tax
Cigarette and Tobacco Tax 2
Insurance Companies Tax
Estate Tax

Other Taxes and Fees *
Fines, Forfeits and Penalties
Income from Investments
Transfer from Lottery Commission

Transfers to Tax Relief Programs *

Transfers for Municipal Revenue Sharing

Other Revenue *

Totals

General Fund Revenue
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022 (FY 2022)

October 2021 Revenue Variance Report

Updated 11/15/21

Fiscal Year-To-Date

% Change FY 2022
October '21 | October '21 | October '21 from Prior | | Budgeted Totals
Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance Variance % Year
165,271,846 187,191,141 21,919,295 691,620,902 783,191,630 91,570,728 13.2% 24.5% 1,805,656,922
4,188,559 4,322,485 133,926 16,754,238 17,125,567 371,329 2.2% -7.8% 51,000,000
153,300,000 178,104,455 24,804,455 671,300,000 724,432,088 53,132,088 7.9% 22.8% 1,844,500,000
10,000,000 25,132,520 15,132,520 68,700,000 119,096,688 50,396,688 73.4% 70.5% 220,033,737
13,932,129 14,765,991 833,862 51,483,609 53,271,665 1,788,056 3.5% 8.1% 150,427,000
8,756,470 6,708,282 (2,048,188) 9,295,523 9,424,667 129,144 1.4% 16.2% 88,250,000
1,495,679 6,291,270 4,795,591 5,666,903 8,858,259 3,191,356 56.3% -18.7% 25,850,000
22,901,813 20,090,735 (2,811,078) 52,614,282 51,201,398 (1,412,884) -2.7% 7.7% 146,319,687
1,048,535 459,835 (588,700) 4,453,257 2,012,115 (2,441,142)  -54.8% -37.0% 12,416,881
204,618 556,990 352,372 654,610 1,723,197 1,068,587 163.2% 25.5% 2,937,863
5,146,398 7,001,996 1,855,598 19,747,177 24,189,024 4,441,847 22.5% 5.6% 60,000,000
(365,000) (368) 364,632 (260,000) (542,792) (282,792)  -108.8% -257.3% (76,150,000)
(20,157,881) (22,658,084)  (2,500,203) (67,304,013) (78,921,985) (11,617,972)  -17.3% -58.9% (180,250,232)
(8,173,628) (6,186,276) 1,987,352 (9,323,458) (6,370,688) 2,952,770 31.7% 55.1% 28,158,071
357,549,538 421,780,972 64,231,434 1,515,403,030 1,708,690,833 193,287,803 12.8% 23.2% 4,179,149,929

* Additional detail by subcategory for these categories is presented on the following page.

1/ Includes revenue from adult-use marijuana sales taxes of $1.1 million for October and $3.6 million for the fiscal year to date.

2/ Includes revenue from adult-use marijuana excise taxes of $0.5 million for October and $1.9 million for the fiscal year to date.
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General Fund Revenue
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022 (FY 2022)

October 2021 Revenue Variance Report
Fiscal Year-To-Date

Updated 11/15/21

Revenue Category

Detail of Other Taxes and Fees:
- Property Tax - Unorganized Territory
- Real Estate Transfer Tax
- Liquor Taxes and Fees
- Corporation Fees and Licenses
- Telecommunication Excise Tax
- Finance Industry Fees
- Milk Handling Fee
- Racino Revenue
- Boat, ATV and Snowmobile Fees
- Hunting and Fishing License Fees
- Other Miscellaneous Taxes and Fees

Subtotal - Other Taxes and Fees

Detail of Other Revenue:
- Liquor Sales and Operations
- Targeted Case Management (DHHS)
- State Cost Allocation Program
- Unclaimed Property Transfer
- Tourism Transfer
- Transfer to Maine Milk Pool
- Transfer to STAR Transportation Fund
- Other Miscellaneous Revenue

Subtotal - Other Revenue
Detail of Transfers to Tax Relief Programs:
- Me. Resident Prop. Tax Program (Circuitbreake
- BETR - Business Equipment Tax Reimb.
- BETE - Municipal Bus. Equip. Tax Reimb.

Subtotal - Tax Relief Transfers

Inland Fisheries and Wildlife Revenue - Total

% Change FY 2022
October '21  October '21  October '21 from Prior | | Budgeted Totals
Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance Variance % Year
13,331,852 12,528,743 (803,109) 13,331,852 12,528,743 (803,109) -6.0% -0.2% 14,813,169
2,766,082 1,227,393 (1,538,689) 5,594,355 5,872,523 278,168 5.0% 31.0% 22,570,549
1,867,183 1,922,006 54,823 8,349,537 8,747,207 397,670 4.8% 62.6% 22,093,824
229,538 330,311 100,773 2,460,702 1,890,181 (570,521)  -23.2% -38.6% 10,438,649
0 0 0 0 0 0 N/A 100.0% 6,200,000
2,198,914 1,854,950 (343,964) 8,795,656 8,137,980 (657,676) -7.5% 3.6% 26,916,990
52,526 203,725 151,199 714,539 583,599 (130,940)  -18.3% -66.4% 1,777,656
634,241 804,935 170,694 2,638,426 3,634,765 996,339 37.8% 82.4% 7,131,739
167,474 147,014 (20,460) 1,292,149 1,297,485 5,336 0.4% -3.7% 4,523,561
796,574 454,179 (342,395) 5,980,768 5,376,367 (604,401)  -10.1% -14.9% 15,989,294
857,429 617,479 (239,950) 3,456,298 3,132,548 (323,750) -9.4% 11.3% 13,864,256
22,901,813 20,090,735 (2,811,078) 52,614,282 51,201,398 (1,412,884)  -2.7% 7.7% 146,319,687
1,823 100 (1,723) 8,994 6,728 (2,266)  -25.2% -66.8% 28,500
6,476 0 (6,476) 40,312 0 (40,312)  -100.0% -100.0% 83,160
1,828,007 2,200,851 372,844 6,038,415 10,062,293 4,023,878 66.6% -1.2% 22,070,666
0 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 6,200,000
(6,082,355) (6,686,517) (604,162) (14,869,000) (15,473,162) (604,162) -4.1% 9.4% (14,872,600)
(492,146) (698,202) (206,056) (2,457,306) (3,747,400) (1,290,094)  -52.5% 29.6% (5,992,693)
(2,869,689) (3,249,474) (379,785) (7,012,000) (7,391,785) (379,785) -5.4% 25.4% (7,012,000)
(565,744) 2,246,966 2,812,710 8,927,127 10,172,639 1,245,512 14.0% 28.7% 27,653,038
(8,173,628) (6,186,276) 1,987,352 (9,323,458) (6,370,688) 2,952,770 31.7% 55.1% 28,158,071
0 146 146 0 601 601 N/A -52.1% 0
(400,000) (514) 399,486 (400,000) (52,603) 347,397 86.8% 73.5% (19,100,000)
35,000 0 (35,000) 140,000 (490,790) (630,790)  -450.6% -190.5% (57,050,000)
(365,000) (368) 364,632 (260,000) (542,792) (282,792) -108.8% -257.3% (76,150,000)
1,056,054 652,880 (403,174) 6,511,988 6,265,410 (246,578)  -3.8% -20.3% 21,471,298
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Highway Fund Revenue Updated 11/15/21
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022 (FY 2022)

October 2021 Revenue Variance Report

Fiscal Year-To-Date i FY 2022
October '21 | October '21 | October '21 % ff:n(rjlh]?:'li(g)i Bl;(l)%:ltse d
Revenue Category Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance Variance Year
Fuel Taxes:
- Gasoline Tax 18,187,726 16,938,744 (1,248,982) 72,578,476 72,345,438 (233,038) -0.3% 8.4% 200,950,000
- Special Fuel and Road Use Taxes 4,480,056 4,534,105 54,049 16,217,525 17,965,926 1,748,401 10.8% 10.4% 46,898,199
- Transcap Transfers - Fuel Taxes (1,653,893) (1,578,695) 75,198 (6,516,189) (6,601,667) (85,478) -1.3% -8.1% (18,211,727)
- Other Fund Gasoline Tax Distributions (454,820) (423,587) 31,233 (1,814,970) (1,809,142) 5,828 0.3% -7.5% (5,025,156)
Subtotal - Fuel Taxes 20,559,069 19,470,567 (1,088,502) 80,464,842 81,900,555 1,435,713 1.8% 8.9% 224,611,316
Motor Vehicle Registration and Fees:
- Motor Vehicle Registration Fees 6,034,368 5,763,428 (270,940) 26,408,643 25,068,152 (1,340,491) -5.1% -9.2% 69,162,203
- License Plate Fees 122,183 34,350 (87,833) 1,417,133 1,519,604 102,471 7.2% 4.7% 3,652,523
- Long-term Trailer Registration Fees 712,183 1,119,296 407,113 2,632,446 3,879,432 1,246,986  47.4% 7.8% 10,884,523
- Title Fees 1,334,739 1,174,640 (160,099) 5,072,484 5,390,796 318,312 6.3% -5.2% 14,325,795
- Motor Vehicle Operator License Fees 880,373 967,807 87,434 3,250,412 4,044,984 794,572 24.4% 6.3% 9,698,036
- Transcap Transfers - Motor Vehicle Fees 0 0 0 (5,041,605) (4,770,250) 271,355 5.4% 5.2% (16,518,054)
Subtotal - Motor Vehicle Reg. & Fees 9,083,846 9,059,521 (24,325) 33,739,513 35,132,717 1,393,204 4.1% -5.3% 91,205,026
Motor Vehicle Inspection Fees 232,489 72,695 (159,795) 996,706 809,219 (187,487) -18.8% -3.7% 3,202,500
Other Highway Fund Taxes and Fees 101,023 129,996 28,973 447,936 567,519 119,583  26.7% 2.6% 1,267,454
Fines, Forfeits and Penalties 50,534 114,691 64,157 202,136 461,538 259,402  128.3% 47.5% 606,412
Interest Earnings 7,240 20,050 12,810 28,956 70,628 41,672 143.9% 8.9% 86,864
Other Highway Fund Revenue 531,120 762,490 231,370 1,975,161 2,441,169 466,008  23.6% 17.7% 9,739,321
Totals 30,565,321 29,630,009 (935,312) 117,855,250 121,383,345 3,528,095 3.0% 4.5% 330,718,893

P43



130th MAINE LEGISLATURE-FIRST REGULAR/SPECIAL SESSION

AUTHORIZED STUDIES

Legislative Council Meeting — November 18, 2021

Study Commission/Committee Study Assigned Number of authorized meetings Report Chairs Status or comment
Staff held to date Date
Legislative Council Study Establishing Danielle Fox Three of 4 meetings held Initial Rep. Talbot |e Draft proposal
And Implementing a System of Using Suzanne 11/1/21 Ross considered.
Racial Impact Statements for Legislation Gresser Report on e Agreement reached with
LD 2, P.L. 2021, c. 21 Darlene Shores Pilot UMS and the Permanent
Lynch 12/15/22 Comm’n on the Status of
Racial, Indigenous and
Tribal Populations
College Affordability and Completion Drafting First meeting scheduled for 11/17 1/22/22 Sen. Daughtry | UMS system staffing —
Commission to Study College Affordability | assistance only Rep. Crockett | using Legislature audio
and Completion Karen Nadeau and YouTube channel for
LD 247, Resolve 2021, c. 103 Rachel Olson meetings
Criminal Records Review Committee Peggy Reinsch Two of 5 authorized meetings have 12/15/2021 Rep. Talbot Report deadline extension
LD 563, Resolve 2021, c. 121 Jane Orbeton been held Ross, Sen. (12/15) and additional
Darlene Shores Bailey meeting request approved
Lynch
Increase Housing Opportunities Hillary Risler Six of 7 authorized meetings have 12/15/21 Speaker e Report deadline
Commission to Increase Housing Samuel Prawer been held Fecteau, Sen. extension (12/15) and
Opportunities in Maine by Studying Zoning | Kristin Brawn Hickman additional meeting
and Land Use Restrictions request approved.
(LD 609, Resolve 2021, c. 59) e Report drafting in
process — final meeting
scheduled for 12/2
Probate Courts into Judicial Branch Janet Stocco Two of 4 authorized meetings have 12/15/21 Rep. Cardone, | Report deadline extension
Resolve, To Establish the Commission to Samuel Senft been held Sen. Carney approved (12/15)
Create a Plant to Incorporate the Probate Darlene Shores
Courts into the Judicial Branch Lynch
LD 719, Resolve 2021, c. 104
Paid Family and Medical Leave Anna Broome Two of 4 authorized meetings held 2/1/22 Sen. Daughtry, | Contracted actuarial study

Commission to Develop a Paid Family and
Medical Leave Benefits Program
LD 1559, Resolve 2021, c. 122

Colleen
McCarthy Reid
Kristin Brawn

Rep. Cloutier

included in duties.
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130th MAINE LEGISLATURE-FIRST REGULAR/SPECIAL SESSION

AUTHORIZED STUDIES

Legislative Council Meeting — November 18, 2021

Study Commission/Committee Study Assigned Number of authorized meetings Report Chairs Status or comment
Staff held to date Date

Creating Basic Income Security Steve Langlin No meetings held — 4 authorized 12/1/21 e One gubernatorial

Committee to Study the Feasibility of Lynne Caswell appointment pending.

Creating Basic Income Security (Anna Broome) e Sec. 1, subsection 7 of

LD 1603, P.L. 2021, c. 405 Kristin Brawn authorizing statute
requires outside
funding before meeting
(by 11/17).

e No new funds

received.

Review of Tax Expenditures by the Julie Jones All 4 authorized meetings have been 12/1/21 Sen. Libby, Report draft in progress

Legislature Working Group to Review the held Rep. Terry

Process of Ongoing Review of Tax

Expenditures by the Legislature

JO, SP #578

Replace Certain Stigmatizing Language Revisor of N/A 1/15/22 N/A

Resolve, to Replace Certain Stigmatizing Statutes

Language in the Maine Revised Statutes

with Respectful Language

LD 1588, Resolve 2021, c. 120

Ongoing statutory studies

Right to Know (Advisory Committee) Peggy Reinsch | Three of 4 required meetings held (5 1/15 Rep. Thom Fourteen of 16 members

010-30A-3327-01 Colleen planned) annually Harnett appointed

T1§411 McCarthy Reid One President appointed

Anna Broome vacancy (recently expired
Rachel Olson term). One gubernatorial

Darlene Shores
Lynch

vacancy (new seat)
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130th MAINE LEGISLATURE-FIRST REGULAR/SPECIAL SESSION

AUTHORIZED STUDIES

Legislative Council Meeting — November 18, 2021

Study Commission/Committee Study Assigned Number of authorized meetings Report Chairs Status or comment
Staff held to date Date
Marijuana Advisory Commission Samuel Prawer One meeting held (no further 1/15 Sen. Miramant, PL c. 363 (effective
T28-Bec.1subc.9 Dan Tartakoff meetings planned) annually Rep. Pierce 10/18) added 6
Kirstin Brawn members to

Commission.
Appointments by
Speaker and President
pending
Report draft in progress

Education and Employment Outcomes Lynne Caswell Up to 4 meetings annually 11/1 15 members, two
Task Force Rachel Olson annually outstanding
T.20-A c. 437 Kristin Brawn appointments.

Leg Council authorized
to allow meetings if
appointments are still
not complete after
11/18

State Compensation Commission Lauren 1/15 even- No members appointed —
T3,§2-B Metayer numbered 4 from Speaker and
years President pending
Citizen Trade Policy Commission Contract staff - At least twice annually Trade Sen. Hickman, 22 members
T. 10, §11 unfilled One meeting scheduled agreement Rep. Gere Gubernatorial
impact appointments pending
assessment
every 2
years

Other Legislative Council-approved studies (staffed by department/agency)

Registration Plate Working Group Secretary of 4 meetings 2/1/2022 none specified 10 members —

Resolve 2021, c. 108 State, BMV in authorizing pending 3 appointments
legislation from the Secretary of State

Task Force To Study the Coordination of | Dept. of Educ. Minimum of 4 meetings Within one Named by 27 members —

Services and Expansion of Educational year of DOE

Programs for Young Adults with convening | Commissioner
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130th MAINE LEGISLATURE-FIRST REGULAR/SPECIAL SESSION

AUTHORIZED STUDIES

Legislative Council Meeting — November 18, 2021

Study Commission/Committee Study Assigned Number of authorized meetings Report Chairs Status or comment
Staff held to date Date

Intellectual or Developmental Disabilities All (3) legislative

or Acquired Brain Injury appointments have been

Resolve 2021, ¢c. 116 made

Maine Health Data Organization Health MHDO staff At least 4 per year Chosen by 11 members —

Information Advisory Committee members All (2) Legislative

Resolve 2021, c. 423 annually appointments have been
made
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130th MAINE LEGISLATURE/FIRST REGULAR SESSION

AUTHORIZED INTERIM COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Interim meetings of Joint Standing Committees or subcommittees

Agriculture, Conservation & Forestry

Karen Nadeau

Darlene Shores Lynch

Criminal Justice and Public Safety

Jane Orbeton

Education and Cultural Affairs Hillary Risler Three meetings held — anticipate request for additional Briefings
Samuel Senft meeting to be scheduled in December

Environment and Natural Resources Deirdre Schneider One authorized meeting - Offsite tour
Daniel Tartakoff Cancelled

Energy, Utilities and Technology Daniel Tartakoff Four of6 authorized meetings have been held Various topics including

Deirdre Schneider

(planned bi-weekly)

carryovers, report-backs
and briefings

Health and Human Services Anna Broome One authorized meeting held Briefings
(additional Joint meeting with GOC on 11/10)
Health Coverage, Insurance and Financial Colleen McCarthy One scheduled for 11/19
Services
Inland Fisheries and Wildlife Kristin Brawn
Innovation, Development, Economic Rachel Olson
Advancement and Business
Judiciary Peggy Reinsch
Samuel Senft
Labor and Housing Steven Langlin
Colleen McCarthy Reid
Marine Resources Lynne Caswell One authorized meeting held Briefings

State and Local Government

Lynne Caswell

Two of 3 authorized meetings have been held

Roads subcommittee

Transportation

Samuel Prawer
Karen Nadeau

Veteran and Legal Affairs

Janet Stocco
Samuel Prawer
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SPONSOR:

LR #
2468

SPONSOR:

LR #
2230

SPONSOR:

LR #
2353

SPONSOR:

LR #
2397

130" Maine State Legislature
Legislative Council

Tabled Bill Requests from October 25, 2021

Spkr. Ryan Michael Fecteau

Title

An Act To Require Cultural Competency Training in State-
licensed Assisted Living Facilities, Nursing Homes,
Rehabilitation Facilities and Independent Living Facilities

Rep. David H. McCrea

Title

An Act To Clarify the Retroactive Granting of Sick Leave
Days to Public School Employees Affected by COVID-19

Rep. Rachel Talbot Ross

Title

An Act Regarding Disciplinary and Grievance Policy
Procedures and Outcomes in State Correctional Facilities

Rep. Bruce White

Title

An Act To Clarify COVID-19 Sick Leave Reimbursement for
School Employees

Action
Tabled 10/25/21

Action
Tabled 10/25/21

Action
Tabled 10/25/21

Action
Tabled 10/25/21
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LORING COMMERCE CENTRE

November 2, 2021

Ms. Suzanne M. Gresser
Executive Director

State of Maine Legislative Council
115 State House Station

Augusta, ME 04333-0115

Dear Ms. Gresser;

Pursuant to “Section 13080-L Annual Report” of the Loring Development Authority of Maine’s
(LDA) enabling legislation, please find enclosed a report of the activities of the LDA for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. The report includes a summary of the LDA’s development
aclivities and audited financial statements for FY21, Subsequent events through October 15,
2021 and proposed activities for FY22 are also reported.

If you have any questions or need additional information, please don’t hesitate to call.

Very truly yours,

e ) 4 27
&) >
Carl W. Flora
President & CEO

“nclosure

ce: Senator Chip Curry - Chair
Representative Tiffany Roberts - Chair
Committee on Innovation, Development, Economic Advancement and Business

Loring Development Authority of Maine
154 Development Drive, Suite F, Limestone, Maine 04750
Telephone: (207) 328-7005 Facsimile: (207) 328-6811 Email: LDA@Loring.org TTY: 1-800-437-1220

This institution is an equal opportunity provider. To file a complaint of discrimination, write to the Loring Development Authority of MailE. 50



LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINE

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

Report on Activity at Maine’s Largest

Industrial - Commercial — Aviation — Business Park




Paragraph 13080-L
Fiscal Year 2021 Annual Report
July 1, 2020 — June 30, 2021

Paragraph 1A:

Paragraph 1B:

Paragraph 1C:

Paragraph 1D:

Paragraph 1E:

Paragraph 1F:

Paragraph 1G:

Paragraph 1H:

Attachment......

Page

Description of the Authority’s Operations ..., 2
Authority’s Audited Financial Statements

for the Year Ended June 30, 2021 .......cocvervnivssacens w3
Property Transactions..iismseiseessonsisiiiescenisimmme. 4
An accounting of all activities of any special utility

district formed under Section 13080-G (None) ... 5
A listing of any property acquired by eminent domain

under Section 13080-G  (NoRE) ....cciecvmrnnnnnsinnnessnssssssnenn, 5
A listing of any bonds issued (None)....... 5
Subsequent Events and Proposed Activities....cocerrerveennen. 6
Further Actions Suitable for Achieving the Purposes

Of this ATFtICIE uvvriiimesinriniinineisssssesresrisisesississnsessssaessssnssnsss 8

........................................ 9

Loring Commerce Centre Tenants
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Loring Development Authority of Maine
Fiscal Year 2021 Annual Report
July 1, 2020 — June 30, 2021

PARAGRAPH 1A: DESCRIPTION OF THE AUTHORITY’S OPERATIONS

Loring Development Authority (LDA) is responsible for the redevelopment of the properties of
the state’s largest industrial park, Loring Commerce Centre, formerly Loring Air Force Base, in
support of new job creation and new economic activity. LA manages the 3,700-acre business-
commercial and industrial park including a 1,600-acre aviation complex; serves as landlord to
leasehold businesses and supplies municipal-type services to residents and businesses that
collectively employ approximately 750 people and occupy 1 million square feet of space in
numerous major buildings. LDA operates a water treatment plant, water distribution system, and
a wastewater collection system; maintains and plows 26 miles of roadways; performs grounds
maintenance on hundreds of acres of developed and developable property; and through
arrangements with the Town of Limestone and others, secures fire, ambulance, and law
enforcement services and contracts for wastewater treatment. The LDA works with prospective
businesses to develop opportunities to reuse additional facilities and properties, create additional

employment and economic activity both at Loring and in the broader region.

Businesses at Loring represent industrial, manufacturing, agriculture, forestry, energy,
telecommunications, commercial, back-office, education, recreation, conservation and aviation
sectors. A profile of the employers at Loring, included at the end of this report, illustrates the
significant level and diversity of economic activity generated by the reuse of facilities at Loring

Commerce Centre,
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Loring Development Authority of Maine
Fiscal Year 2021 Annual Report
July 1, 2020 — June 30, 2021

PARAGRAPH 1B: AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
FISCAL YEAR 2021

The attached Independent Auditor’s Report was approved by the Loring Development Authority
Board of Trustees on October 13, 2021.
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINE
FINANCIAL STATEMIENTS

JUNE 30, 2021

Chester M. KP.I].I‘[]E‘.)& Certified Pubbic Aceountanis P 55
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PORNG DEVELOPMENT AUTHCRITY OF MAINL

MANAGEMENT'S IDISCUSSTON AND ANALYSIS
For the Fiseat Years Pnded June 30, 2021 and 2020

HINALIDITED

The managenent of the 1oring Development Authority of Maine (LDA) is providing the following
gssion and analysis of the linancial activities for the year ended June 30, 2021, The LDA s a
component unit of the State of Maine with a mission to create jobs and positive economic prowth
by redevelopment of approsimately 3,700 acres of the farmer Loring Air Foree Base ocated in
Limoestone, Maine.

dise

Report Lavout

The management’s discnssion and analysis is idended to muke reports move understandable, easier
to read, comprehensible and 1o explain significant changes and financial positions between the
current ond prios vear.

inancial Mighlights

o Totai net position decrcased by $1,332,677.  Operations deereased net position by
£1.669,430, Revenues were up due 16 an increase in state assistance while expenses were
down due o decreases in salarios, utilities and vneotiectable accounts,

v Total revenues of 31,626,608 are comprised of 16% [rum lease revenue, 41% from state
assistance, 17% from federal grants, 17% from water and sewer fees and 5% (rom other
LDA operations.

s Due tv a challenying ecanomic environment nef jobs have declined over the past fiscal
vear.

e Ihie annual Caretaker erant revenue for the mainlenance and operation nfessential services
and tavility maintenance ceased in September 2004, The LDA now relies on lease income,
state assistance and olher operations o support these operations,  The LDA's cost for
facility maintenance, operations of waler distribution and sewer collection systems,
maintenance of a nehwvork of coads, parking fofs, airfield pavements. together with serviees
For wastewaler treatment, fire, police and ambulance protection was approximately $1.9
million in fiscol vear 2021

Basic Financil Statements

The 1.DA’s financial reports are prepared wsing proprictary Tund {enterprise fund) accounting
which is the same basis as privaie-sector business enterptises and wlilizes the accrual basis of
accounfing. The accrual basis of accounting records income ag it is earned and costs as incurred.
The basie financial stiements include the fellowmp:

Statemaents of Net Pogition

Statements of Revenoes, Fxpenses and Changes in Net Position
Statemncils of Cash Flows

-
Chester M. Kearmey, Cenified Public Accountans

P 57




LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINE

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Fiscal Years Foded June 30, 2021 and 2020

UNAUDITED

The Statements of Net Position exhibits the balance of current and capital assets less current
liabilities and a net asset balance. As required by GASB 34, the LDA has included the estimated
fair market value of net assets (structures, vehicles and equipment, aviation fheilities. roads and
accessory facilities, special use structures and land) which were given o the 1LDA at no cost by the
United States Air Force.  The carrying value of toal capital assets for the current year is
$54,0:46,875 as compared to a capital asset bidance of $53,098,271 for the prior year ending June

30, 2020

Table | provides condensed data of the Statements of Net Position for the fiscal vears ended 2021
p ;

and 2620
Tuable |

MNed Posttion

Current assets

Net capital assets

Notes recetvable, net of curvent portion
Tolal Assets

Deferred Outflons of Resources

Current Liabilities
Long-term Liabilities

Toty Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources

Total Net Positicn

2021

b, 006 904
54,046,878

8,807

2,394,538
1.098.317

3,492 855

Ll
L

BJ

026

5 L251,725
55,098,271
. 300,000

36,649,996

d

23,42,

4

[y

g

¥ ER

1237
L.304.14

[
[an 2 N

L)

3,427,877

6840

3

The Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Net Position reports the federal and
state assistance and operations revenue, less operating costs in order to retlect the change in net
position value for the current year in combination with the prior vear's net position value 1o reflect

the aet position balance as of June 30, 2021

-11-
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FORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINE

MANAGEMERNT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Fiscal Years Fnded June 30, 2021 and 2020

UNAUDITED
Table 2 shows the chanpes in net position for the fiseal years 2021 and 2020,
Table 2

Changes in Nef Position

2021 2020
Revenues:
Program Revenues
State Assistanes § 665,974 3 503,306
General Reveuues
tease and Other 617,260 601,244
fotal Operating Revenues 1283234 1.164.530
Clperating Expenses:
Salaries and Benelits 432 477 505,737
Travel [,509 2,600
Contracted Services 569,757 482,930
Depreciation 969,774 972,344
Legal and Audit 6,003 9,591
Marketing 7.547 1,310
Supplics and Expenscs 65,104 84,961
Maintenance 197438 202,077
Utrities 572,466 606,308
Tincollectahle Accounts - 13,814
{her General and Administrative P3h4149 122,629
Total Operating, Exponses 2,952 6064 1.064.096
[.oss from Operalions {1,669.430) (1.959,548)
Uither Revenues & Fxpenses
Other 330753 139.259
Change in Net Posilion vO11,330.077) % (LB20287)

The Statements of Cash Flows are included, which discloses net cash provided by, or used in
pperating activities, auncapital financial activitics, and from capital and refated financing activities.
Pram these slatements, the reader can obtain comparative information on the sources and uses of
cash for the reported years,

-{l-
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINE

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

UNAUDITED

The Loring Development Authority’s Funds

The Loring Development Authority’s Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of
accounting. ‘Total revenues and other sources amounted to $1,626,608 in 2021 and $1,250,717 in
2020. Operating revenucs for the two years as represented in the tables below totaled $1,283,234
in 2021 and §1,104,550 in 2020. Federal and state grants and assistance represents 52% and 45%
of the LDA’s operating revenues for the last two years.

2021 Operating Revenues

m Federal & State assistance
M Lease revenue
m Water and sewer fees

m Other

2020 Operating Revenues

4%

® Federal & State assistance
® Lease revenue
@ Water and sewer fees

m Other

-1V~
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINE

MANAGEMLENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

UNAUDITED

Operating expenses amounted to $2,952,664 in 2021 and $3,064,096 in 2020. The following charts
reflect the expenditures for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.

2021 Expense Distribution

® Salaries and benefits

® Depreciation

® Utilities

m Supplies and expense

® Repairs and maintenance
® Contracted services

© Uncollectable accounts

v All other

2020 Expense Distribution

® Salaries and benefits

m Depreciation

@ Utilities

® Supplies and expense

® Repairs and maintenance
m Contracted services

m Uncollectable accounts

i All other

LA
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINE

MANAGEMENT’S BISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

UNAUDITED
Capital Assels
At the end of fiscal year 2021, the Loring Development Authority had land, buildings,
improvements, structures and facilities ot $70,242,283. A significant portion of these asscts were
donated to LDA by the U8, Air Force or purchased. Net of depreciation, these assets were recorded
at $54,046,878. Table 3 shows capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation.

Tuble 3

Capital Assets at June 30
(Net of Depreciation)

2021 2020

Land $ 10,444,599 $ 10,467,199
Buildings 12,283,915 12,747,432
Equipment and Improvements 5,669,879 5,804,266
Special Use Structures 4,972,340 5,233,128
Aviation Facilities 15,410,879 15,466,815
Roadways and Accessories 3,265,266 3,379,631
Pipeline 2.000,000 2.000.000

Total Net Capital Assets $ 54,046,878 B 23098271

Budeeting

The LDA provides an annual budget for control and internal purposes only. Ne legaily adopted
budget is maintained.

Deht

The Loring Development Authority had an operating Line of Credit debt of $1,700,000 with
£1,700,000 outstanding as of June 30, 2021. '

The LDA entered into a short-tenn [ending agreement in March 2021 with Northern Maine
Development Conunission, receiving funds in the amount of $100,000 secured by second and third
morigages on real estate, The balance at June 30, 2021 is $100,000 and is payable in full in
September 2021,

‘The [.DA took on bonded debt of $454,720 in 2010 for the purpose of upprading sewer lines. As
of June 30, 2021 the balance on this debi is $215,992.

The LDA entered into a foan agresment with USDYA Rural Development in the year ended June 30,
2010. The $330,000 proceeds from the note were used to pay off the construction line of credit
which provided funds for the sewer upprade project. The balance as of June 30, 2021 is $282,221.

Vi-
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINE

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Fiscal Years Ended fune 30, 2021 and 2020

HNAUIITED

The LDA entered into a lending apreement with Northern Maine Development Commission,
receiving funds in the amount of $200,000 sceured by assets. The balance at Junc 30, 2021 13
$32,219.

The LA entered into a lending agreement with Northern Maine Development Commission tn May
2020, reeciving funds in the amount of $200.000 secured by assets. The balance at June 30, 2021
is $164,350

In December 2014 the LDA entered into a mortgage agreement with Katahdin Trust Company,
receiving funds in the amount of $254,000 secured by a real estate. The balance at June 30, 2021
iz $135,779.

In December 2020 the LA entered into an agreement with the U.S. Small Business
Administration, receiving funds in the amount ol $150,000 through the Economic Injury Disaster
Loan Program. The balance at June 30, 2021 i5 $150,000.

On lanuary 2, 2019 the Authority entered into an agreement with the Maine Military Authonity
(MMA) by which the Authority received equipment valued at $207,000. Under the terms of the
agreement the Authority can not sell or transfer ownership of the assets for a period of ten (1)
years. During the ten {10) year period the Authority is obligated to pay 25% ot any lease revenue
received for the use of the equipment.

As of June 30, 2021 the equipment is not leased and no payments on the note are anticipated in the
current term.

Fulure Developments

The LDA is working to compensate for the loss of state funding. The LDA has developed
collaborations with other economic development groups which have proven cifective at identilying
development prospects and has begun working with private developers who are interested in
purchasing real estate. Meanwhile, as developmont has continued and vacant buildings have been
returned to productive uses, fewer facility-maintenance resources will be needed. As listed in the
financial highlights, the LDA has also sccured resources from the Air Force to upgrade the water
{reatment plant and water distribution infrastructure and has consolidated waste water systems with
a local sewer treatment district, Ower the longer term, LDA’s continued development will create
mare revenuc from real cstate operations that will be available to invest in repairing, replacing and
upgrading infrastructure as well as further development eftorts,

COVID-19 has also created additional challenges as potential tenants have paused their expansion
plans due to the uncertainty created by the pandemic.

V-
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12 Dyer Street, Presque Isle. Maine D4769-1550 Barbara E. McGuire, CPA, CGMA
207-764-3171 Fax 207-764-6362 Timothy P, Poitras, CPA, CGM A

To the Board of Trustees of the
Loring Development Authority of Maine

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPOR|

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type aclivilies of the Loring
Development Authority of Maine, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the
related notes to the linancial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic Hinancial
statements as listed in the fable of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statenienis

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these Nnancial statements in
accordance with aceounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America: this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation ol (inancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Aunditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material inisstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audil evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial stalements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the {inancial statements, whether due to fravd or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and lair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstanees, but not for the purposc of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting, estimates made by manapement, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.
-y~
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We helicve that the audit evidence we have obtained & suflicient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our unmodified and adverse audit opinions.

Sunemary of Opinions

Opinion Unit Type of Opinion
PBusiness- Type Activities Unmodified
Agaregate Disuretely Presented Component Units Adverse

Rasiy for Adverse Opinion on Aggregute Discretely Presented Component Unit

The fnancial stotements referred to above do not inclode Fnaneial data for the Authority’s legally
separate component unit, Loring Industiies, LLC. Accounting principles penerally accepled in the
United States of America require financial data for those component units to be reported with the
financial data of the Authority unless the Authorily also issues linancial stalements for the financial
reporting entity that include the financial data for its component units, The Authority has not issued
such reporfing, entity financial statements, Because of this departure from accounting principles
generally sccepted in the United States of Amicrica, the assets, liabilifies, net position, revenues, and
expenses of the apgregate discretely presented component units would have been presented as
$532.674, $169.201, $363.383, S0 and $115.998, respectively.

Atlverse Opinion

in our opinion, because of the significance of the matter discussed in the “Basis for Adverse Opinion
on Apprepate Discretely Presented Component Unit” paragraph, the linancial stalements referred to
above do aot present fairly the financial position of the aggregate discretely presented component unit
of the Loring Development Authority of Maing, as of June 30, 2021, or the changes in financial
position thereof for the vear then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Unmodified Opiniony

Tn our apinion, the financiai statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective [inancial position of the business-lype activitics of the Loring Development Authority of
Maine, as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where
applicable, cash fows thereof for the years then ended in accordince with accounting principles
penerally sccepted in the Uniled States of Aunerica,

Substantial Dowbt about the Organization’s Ability (o Continye as u Going Concern

The sccompanying fnancial statements have been prepared assuming that the Organization will
continue as a poing concern. As discussed in Note 21 to the financial statemoents, the Organization has
suffered yecurring significant reductions in revenues, has a nel deliciency in net assets, and has stated
that substantint doubt exists about its ability to continue as a going concern, Management's evaluation
of the events and conditions and management’s plans regarding those matters alse are described in
Note 21, The financial statements Jo not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome
of this uneerainty, Our opinion is not modifed with respect o this matter,
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Other Matters
Regvired Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Munagement's Discussion and Analysis on pages [ througl: VI and the Schedule of Changes in Net
OPEB Liability and Schedule of Emplayer's Shave of OPER Contributions on Page 24 be presenied to
supplenient the basic linancial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Poard, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, cconomic, or historical context.  We have applicd certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary inlorination in accordance with auditing standards generaily accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries o munagement about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the inforination for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial stalements, and other knowledge we obtained during our nudit of the
basic financial statlements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the fintited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express un opinion or
provide any agssurance.

{Ither Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September
28, 2021 on our consideration of Loring Development Authority of Maine's intermal eontrol vver
financial reporting and on our tests of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
condracs, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose aof that report s solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the resuits of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the offectivencess of the Loring Development Authority's
internal control gver financial reporting or on compliance, That report is an integral part ol an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standacds in considering Loring Development
Authority of Maine's infernal control over financis! reporting aud compliance.

Presque lsle, Maine
September 28, 2021

P 66



LORING DEVELOPRMENT AUTHORITY OF MAING

STATEMINER OF NET POSITION

JUTRE 30, 221 AND 2020

ARSHTS

2021 2020
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and tenporsry investinenits [Nofe 1) b H7.081 S 19As)
e from State of Maing {Now 993 104,000 3.306
Accounts reeeivable, ney 511,799 s 8§53
Current plareon of susies receivahle 32,099 1353758
fnveniory 4,725 4908
{006,904 125,728

I ASSETS (N 13)
Capital assels T 242 2R3 0,403 238

Less accwinlated depreciation _£15,304 907y
55,008,271
OFTTHIR ASSETS
Nejes mooeivable (Nowe 1) 300 0n00
300,000
ITAL ASSETS § 55 101 RR3 § 50,049 994
DETFERRED OLTFLOWS O RESOUECES
Propaid expense 1,400 13,893
Delerred ouflows aelated so OPER {Mate 21) 1407 $ 9,519
3 %807 §o2n4a2
LIABILITIES
CHRRENT LIARILIVHS
Accounts pavable 408,027 192,432
Accrued expanses 56,744 75,536
Short-term debt (Note 13) HOO,0600
Linz of credit {Note 3) 1,700,000 1,686,000
Current portion of lenp-tean dedy 123765 175,76
T 1,123,733
FONG-TRRM DR
Notes Payable (Note 14) VR30S 1,237,892
Less Currant Portinn LTS (175,740)
RE0,796 1062, 116
Dae to Siate of Maine {Note 15) 700 207,000
1,057,796 1.269, 146
DR LIABILITY (Mow 21 483521 34,997
TOTAL LIABILITIES 33492 855 $ 3TRYT
DEFPRRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Grants authovized and unexpenled (Mete 4} 1,946 293 734
Uinearped lease tevenue (Mote 7) 507 100, 5077
Deferred inflows related 1 OTER (Mote 21) 14953 58,568
Prepaid et 6,111 G140
TOTAL DEFERRED BHFLOAVS oF REMDITIRCES b 168,317 5 461846
HET POSITION
invested 0 capital assety, zel of wiated deb SY1T1 666 33,903 424
Crrestrivied AN YRz (1,119,729
TOTAL WNET POSITHIM R ASEOIR 552,783,695

S nojes to financial siataents

A
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINE

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

YFARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AN 2020

2021 2024
QPERATING REVENUES
State assistance (Note 9) 5§ 665974 % 503,306
Lease revenue 254,894 272,254
Water and sewer fees 280,035 284,733
Other 82,331 44,257
1,283,234 1,104,530
OPERATING EXPENSES
Sularies and benetits 432477 565,737
Depreciation 969,774 972,344
Litilities 572,466 606,308
Supplies and expense 63,104 84,961
Repairs and maintenance 197.458 202,072
Contracted services 569,757 482,930
Legal and audit 6,063 .59
Insurance 47,082 46,342
Communications 14,015 14,071
Fruvel 1,599 2,600
Interest expense and bond bank fees 68,722 62,114
Marketing 7,547 1,110
Uneollectable secounts - 13,814
2,952,664 31,064,096
LOSS FROM OPERATIONS {1,669 430) (1,959,546)
NON-OFERATING REVENUESAEXPENSES)
Federal and State assistance for capital projects (Note 9) 275,792 127,621
Gain ob sale of surplus property 37,968 1,058
Loss on asset disposal (6,621 {(6,908)
Interest income 2,652 5,051
OPER Expense recovery (Note 21) 10,962 12,437
336,753 139,259
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (1,332,677) (1,820,287
MET POSITION - BEGINNING {JF YEAR 52,783,693 54,603,582

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

£ 51,451,018

B 52,783,695

See notes to financial statements
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINE

STATEMENTS QF CASH FLOWS

YEARS HNDEL JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash reccived from customers $ 585396 3 438,297
ash received [rom governmental assistance 369,280 1,145,349
Cash reecived from other sources 82,331 44,257
Cash paid for salaires and benefits (451,287} (570,338)
Cash paid for eontract services (369,757} {482,934)
Cesh paid for goods and services {679,573} {R6R, 774}
Inderest pakd {68,722) {62,116)
Net cash used in operating activitics (532,332) {336,2035)
CASH FLOWS FROM NOM-CAPIFAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net advances on line of credit 20,000 285,000
Procesds from shorl-tenn debt 160,000 .
Proceeds from long-term debt 156,000 260,000
Interes! received 2,632 5,051
Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 272,652 490,051
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments for capital acquisitions and construction - (£37,853)
IPayrncnts on fong-torm debt {407,331) (267,409)
Payments received on note receivable 302,575 2,453
Sale of property 132,966 1,058
Met cash provided by {used in) captial financing activilics 28210 {401,749)
NET DECREASE [N CASIT AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 211,470 {247,503}
CASH AND CASH RQUIVALENTS AT REGINHING OF YEAR 319,151 567,054
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 87,681 319,151

RECONCILIATION OF LOSS FROM OPERATIONS TO NET
CASH USER IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss from operations (1669430 {1,959,346)
Adjustments o reconcile foss from operations
to net cash used in operating activities

Depreciation 969,714 972.344
OPER Expense Recovery 10,262 12,437
Changpes in assets and Habilitics
Operating aceounts recciviable, net 53,096 {102,777)
Opcrating funds due fiom other governments {96.694) 602,093
ioventory 4,273 1,438
Prepaid expenses 12,493 (12,453)
Acconnts payable 215,593 123.25¢
Prepaid rent €2,629) 1,877
Accrued expenses {18,810 £4,601)
Unearned fease revenue - (17.790)
Deferred outllows relaled o OPED 2,122 (3,475}
{OPEB Liability 5,524 (47.173)
Deferred inlews refated 1o OPED (18,608) 38,812
i, 137,098 1,623,341
Net cash provided used in operating activities § (532.332) § (336,205)

See notes to fipancial stalemenis
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HISTORY OF THE ORGANIZATION

On July 12, 1991, the President of the United States accepted the recommendation of the
Base Closure and Realignment Commission (o close Loring Air Force Base {Loring) located
in the Town of Limestone, Maine, Town of Casweil, Maine, and the City of Caribou, Maine,
as well as nine off-site locations used tor housing, communications and water distribution.
The effective date of closure was September 30, 1994, The Loring base property, which
excludes any oft-site fecations, consists of approximately 8,700 acres of land, 3.1 million
square feet of cxisting facility space and an aviation complex, which includes a 12,100 foot
rupway, related aviation facilities and operating systems.

On July 13, 1993, the Maine State Legistature cnacted Public Law Chapler 474, establishing
the Loring, Development Authority of Maine (1LDDA), a public municipal corporation. The
LDA is entrusted will investigating the acquisition of the properfies within the geographical
boundaries of Loring, and the subsequent redevelopment and management of property o
acquired.

Gn April 4, 1997, the United States Air Force trans{ermed approximately 1,700 acres of land,
associated facilities, infrastructure and personal property to the LDA via the execution of
Economic Development Conyeyance (EDC) and Lease in Furtherance of Conveyance
documents, This EDC' document, which is a mechanism used by the Federal povernment to
transfer former military installations to foeal reuse aothorities for job crealion and economic
development purpuses, trunsterred control of the Loring property to the LDA through 4 no-
vost, 55-year lease, with commitments liom the Air Force to transfer title to the properfy
upop receiving environmental clearance from the Environmental Protection Agency. The
coaveyance documents alse include a provision that provided the 1.DA with an sverage of
$2.7 million annually through September 30, 2004 to fand its nosicipa type functions
including, but not limited to, fire and emergency services, police protection, water and wuste
water systemns, as well as protection and maintenance of buildings, grounds and roadways.
This funding cxpired September 30, 2004, The lease given to the LDA i 1997 was
superseded in 200 with a Quit Claim deed conveying 2,805 of the originsl 3,700 acres jn
fee title and i 2004 when the temainder of the property was conveyed hy deed. The LDIA
also acquired a 185 mile pipeline in 2005 and a 142,000 squarc-Toot building used by the
Defense Finance and Accounting Service, subject to a leaseback arrangement.

Consistent with the 1.DA’s enabling legislution, as amended, the Board of Trustees is
comprised of thirteen (13) voting members, each of whom are nominaied by the Goverpar gf
the State of Maine and confimed by the Maine Senate.  Of the thirteen (13), one iz a
comnussioner of a department of state government, designated by the Governor to serve on
the LDA Board. No less than seven of the Board of Trustees must be residents of Aroosteok
County and be nominated by one of the primary impacted communitics, as defined in the
enabling legislation. [n addition, no less than four of the Board of Trustees must live outside
ot Arcostook County. The enahling legislation alse imposes term limits on the Trostees of
two conseeutive four-year terms. The Bomd of Trustees have elecied a Chair, Vice-Chair,
Secretary and Treasurer to serve terms of one year. The fiscal vear for the LDA runs from
July 1 through Juge 300 The financial infornation of the LDA is reported as 1 compenent
unit as part of the finuncial statements of the State of Maine.

-
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.}
(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PGLICIES
Basis of presentation
The LDA preparcs its financial statuments on the accrual basis of accounting. Under the
accrual basis of accounting, vevenue is recognized when earned and measurahle and
expenses are recognized when incurred and measurable.
The LDA is comprised of business-type activities only. As prescribed by Section Sp20 of
GASB's Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards,
Special Purpose Govermnents, only the financial statements required for enterprise funds arc

presented.

Measurement focus

Proprictary funds are accounted for on a flow of economie resources measurement foous,
All assets and labilitics associatcd with the operation of these funds are included on the
Statcments of Net Position. The Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Net
Position presents the increases (i.e. revenues) and decreases (i.e. expenses) in net total assets.
The Statements of Cash Flows provides information about how the Authority finances and
meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary activities.

L

e of estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure
of contingent assets and labilitics, and the reported revenucs and expenses.  Actual results
could differ fram those estimates.

Budgetary_information

GASD #34 requires that budgetary comparison schedules be presented only for the general
fund and each major special revenue fund that has a legally adopted annual budget. The
LDA currently does not legally adopt an annual budpet and therefore has not presented one

in these financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents

The L.DA has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand, demand deposits
and cash with fiscal agents. Currently, the LDA treats all their cash as a cash equivalent
because they can deposit or withdraw cash at any time without prior notice or penalty.

Defining operating revenues and expenses

The LDA’s proprietary funds distinguish between operating and non-operating revenues and
expenses. Operating revenues and expenses of the LDA consist of federal and state
assistance for non-capital transactions as well as revenue derived from rental activities and
the costs of providing rental property. including depreciation and excluding interest costs.
All other revenues and expenses ate reported as non-operating.

£
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cont’d.}

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d.)

Deferred Qutilows of Resources

The LDA reports decreases in net assets that relate to future periods as deferred outflows of
resources in a separate section of its statement of net position. Deferred outflows of
resources as of June 30, 2021 consist of prepaid utility expenses and items velating to other
post-employment benefits.

Deferred [nflows of Resources

The LDA reports a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement clement reflects an increase in net assefs that applies to future periods, The LDA
will nol recognize the related revenues uniil a future event occurs. The LDA's deferred
inflows of rezources are defailed in Note #7 and Note #9,

The Authority has adopted the provisions of Statement No. 88 of the Governmenial
Accounting Standards Board (GASR) Accounting Board — Certain Disclosures Related to
Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements. GASR 88 expands required
disclosure for long-term debt and other tong-term obligations. Adoption of this standard
does not impact previously issued financial statements,

(3y CASH AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS

Deposits with financial institutions are subject to custodial credit risk. Custodial credit risk
is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Authority’s deposits may not be returned to
it. The Authorify’s investment policy is fo invest in regional banks and federal securitics and
to insure the funds to as great a degree as possible. The Authorily's checking deposits at
year-end were covered by Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or
collateralized by U.S. Governmental Agency securitics held in the Authority’s name.

The Authority’s cash balances in the financial statements arc $87,681 and $319,151 as of
June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The Authority’s cash is categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assunied by the
Authority at year-end. These categories are defined as follows:

Category #1 - Insured or collateralized with securities held by the Authority or by its
agency in the Authority’s naine,

Category #2 — Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s
trust department or agent in the Authority’s name.

Category #3 — Uncollateralized, which includes any bank balance that is collateralized
with securities held by the pledging financial institution or by its trust
department or agent but not in the Authority’s name.

9.
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cont’d.)
CASH AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS (cont'd.)

As of June 30, 2021 and 2020 the Authority’s entire cagh and temporary investment balances
are classified as Category 1.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Authority employees are pranted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts. Upon
termination, an employee is paid the full amount of acewmulated vacation days not taken.
Sick leave is not payable upon termination.

The Authority’s finoncial liability for accrued vacations at June 30, 2021 and 2020 is
$23.951 and $21,192, respectively.

PENSION PLAN

The Authority has instituled & Model Simplified Employee Pension Plan for all eligible
Authority employees in accordance with Section 408(K) of the Internal Revenue Code. All
Authority contributions to the employee’s individual retirement account are 100% vested to
the employee on the date of the contribution. Employee contributions to the plan are
discretionary, subject to Internal Revenue Code limitations. Employer contributions to the
plan, at 5% of regular gross wages, totaled $17,017 and $21,580 for the years cnded June 30,
2021 and 2020,

RENTAL OF FACH.ITIES
The Authority has jeased land and buildings at Loring to various third partics under non-
cancellable operating leases requiring fixed payments through 2026. The leases provide for

varying terms and conditions.

Asg of June 30, 2021, the future minimum lease payments for the next 5 years are as follows:

FFiscal yvear ending June 30; Amount
2022 546,253
2023 78,069
2024 55,242
2025 49,006
2026 49,430
3778,000

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

The Authority received advances of rent and other receipts, which have been characterized us
deferred inflows in the accompanying Statement of Net Position,

As of June 30, 2021 and 2020 the amount included as deferred inflows was $100,507. The
balance as of June 30, 2021 consisted of a $100,000 partial payment of a fee for an exclusive
negotiation period received from CSJ Green Eco-Energy development company, a $500 due
diligence fee with Synergen Solar and the remaining §7 is an advance on a property
insurance claim. These amounts are expected 1o be recognized as revenue in 2022,

-10-
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCTS (cout'd)

The Authority records a deferred inflow of resources related (o OPER obligations; this
amount iy further detailed in Note 21,

LINE OF CREBIT AND SHORT-TERM DERT

The Authority has a variable rate operating tine of credit with Machias Savings Bank with
interest payable at 70% of “Wall Street Prime™, currently 2.275%. with a inaximum limit of
31,500,600, On March 23, 2020 the limit of the Hne of eredit was extended to $1,700,000
for a 2-month period, automatically reverting o $1,500,000 on July 31, 2020. As of June 30,
2021, the line of eredit balance was $1,700.000, leaving $0 available for use aad was not in
compliance as it is over-extended by $200,000. The line is secured by the Authority’s
accounts and notes receivable and other genersl intangibles but could be subject 1o additional
collateral pending negotiations with the bank (o bring it into compliance.

On March 12, 2020 the Authority was advanced $160.000 (rom Nodbern Maine
Development Commission o be used as werking capifsl. The balance was due in full on or
before September 12, 2021 including interest acerued at 4% per annum. On September 23,
2021 the parties signed a modification agreement which extended the maturity date to March
15,2022,

PUBLIC SECTOR FUNDING
The LDA is currently funded through the tollowing public sources:
(A} Statc of Maine:

Tax Increment Financing - On July 5, 19496, the State Legislatere enacted LD 1741
establishing the Loring Job Increment Financing Fund (Fund). The Fund, which has a
term of thirty years, was created to estublish a supplemental source of funding to
subsidize future municipal service costs, This Fund will reccive state income tax
withholding revenues which can be attributed to incremental jobs created at Loring and
will be bascd upon 50% of the State income tax withholding from these incremental
Jobs. State contributions to the Fund will he made on an annual basis and are payable by
July 31 of cach year. The LDA has realized revenues of $515,974 and $503.306 for the
years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively,

Department of Transportation (DO1) - The state of Maine DO awarded the Authority
a grant of $1,000,000 for airport facility renovations. $0 was spent in the year ended
June 30, 2021 and 2020, $7.825 of the balance was unexpended as of June 30, 2621 and
is recorded as grauts authorized and unexpended.

(B) The United States Departrent of Defense - In 2009 the United States Adr Foree Real
Property Agency made payment of $1.500,000 to the Authority under an agreement
relating to the Air Force’s oblipation to provide an alternative source of supply for
Loring’s drivking water.  In 2015, upon recognizing that the initial funding was
msufficient to complete the projeet and comply with the Safe Drinking Water Act an
additional $300.000 was approved and advanced. For the vear ended June 30, 2021 the
Authority expended $271,792 of these finds on the water system while $14,121 remaing
to be spent and is recorded as grants authorized and unexpended.
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORYTY OF MAINE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont™d)
CONCENTRATION OF RISK

Federal and Staie funding

The LDA received approximalely 52% of ity operating revenue [romn state fanding for the
M Y p g 2

year ended June 30, 2021, The ability to continue its operations is dependent on continued
funding,

Arcounts reevivable

For the year ended June 30, 2021, approximately 47% of the Authority's accounts receivable
was due [rem 1 customer. $455,635 (100%) of this amount has been reserved as a doubtul
account.

ALLOWANCE FOR DOURTFUL ACCOUNTS

Accounts reecivable are shown on the Statoments of Net Position net of the allowance for
doubtful accounts. The allowance for doubtful qccounts was $435.635 for the years ended
Jure 30, 2021 and 2020,

NOTHES RECEIVARLE
British Cyele Supply Company

On July 22, 2015 the Authority sold a building to the British Cycle Supply Company and
received a promissory note in the amount of §66.400. The note is payable to the Authority in
monthly instailments of $429 including nterest at 4.75% through July 2035 the original note
contained a final balloon payment in the amount of $53,595 dne July 2020 which the
borrower was tnable 1o pay se the parties have agreed to extend the note term, The note is
secured by the boilding. The note balance as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 is $52,800 and
$55,375 respectively.

Penobscot Nafoural GGas

On Seplemhber 24, 20H), pursuant to an ancidinent 2 sale/lease agreement with Loring Bio-
energy, LLC (LBE), LDA transferred assets. including the former heat plant building and
real estate, to and leased a pipeline extending from Loring to Searsport, Maine in exchange
for a D% inferes! note in the amount of $3.000000. The note iy payable in 10 annual
installments nf %300,000 with the first installment due and payable within 30 days after the
buyer commences “substantial commercial activity™ or June 30, 2013, whichever comes
first.

in June 2012, LBy secured creditor put the property, including the lease rights for the
pipeline, up for bid at auction with Penobscot Natural Gas (PNG) heing the successful
bidder. PNG completed the acguisition of the foreclosed rights from [LBE's lender, and
negotiated an “Assumption Agreement”™ with the LDA. The Assumption Apreement, signed
June 11, 2013, contains PNG's commitiment (o honor all future obligations under the LBE
agreements, and alse contains LDA's acknowledgernent that PNG had cured existing LBE
defaults and tha PNG qualifies as a “penmitted transferee”™ as delined in the 1LBE
documents,

As of June 30, 2021 the outstanding balance due on the agreement is 300,000,
12
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’id.)
{13) CAPITAL ASSETS

With the exception of the assets acquired from the United States Air Foree, (see below) all
capital assets are stated at cost (or estimaled historical cost) and updated or additions and
retirements during the year. Assets acquired with grants are also stated al eosi.  ‘The
Authority maintains a capitalization threshold of $5.000. Improvements are capitalized; the
cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add value fo the asset or materially
extend assct lives are not capitalized. Asscts such as land and some tand improvements are
considered inexhaustible and are not being depreciated. Capital assers not in use are also not
being depreciated,

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following uscful lives:

Description Estimated lives
Buildings and improvements F5-50 years
Equipment 3-5 years
Vehicles 3-5 years

On June 30, 2017 the Authority adjusted the values of buildings that were contribuiced by the
United States Air Force to reflect revised estimates of the buildings’ potential future use and
value to the Authority. The adjustment reduced the original value by $7, 482,924, The total
accumulated depreciation on these buildings was $2,234,222 resulling in a recognized write
down in the amount of $5.248 702, In June 2009 an additionat $37.208 was written off.

Capital asset activity for the vear ended Junie 30, 2021 was as follows:

CAPITAL ASSETS ACQUIRED BY LDA (LISTORICAL COST)
Heginning, Ending
Nalance Additions  Retirements Balance
Capital Assets
Land 10,000 10,000
Equipment and improvements LLEB79.161 47.549 11831612
Total at hislorical cost 11,889 161 47.540 11,841,612
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Equipment and iinprovements 3.861.625 465.817 1B.B20 4,288,647
Total Accumulated Depreciation 3861625 463,837 38.820 4.288.642
Capital assets af historical cost, net BO27.510 {465,837} (8,729 1352970

-13-
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUITHORITY OF MAINE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATVEMENTS {cont™d.)

{13) CAPITAL ASSETS (cont'd)

CAPITAL ASSETS ACOQUIRED FROM UL 5 AIR FORCE

Begioning Ending
Batance Additions  Retirements Balance
Capiial Assets
Land 10,457,199 22,600 10,434,599
Buildings
[n tse 1,803,843 S6,806 4,747,037
Leased 15,185,594 15,185,894
Not in ise 5,006,025 o L666,025
21,655,766 56,806 21.598.950
Equipment
I use 136,500 34,000 102,500
ot in use £9.000 o _89.000
225,500 34,000 191.500
Special use structures
Watur plant and distribution 2.080.033 5,080,033
Other facilities and fmprovements
Aviation laeilities
Rumways 9472226 94722206
Structures 6,109,861 6,105, 861
Fuel pipeline 2,000,004 2.000.000
17,578,087 17.578.087
Roadways and accessories 1,517.490 3.517.496
Capital assets from .5, Air Foree 58.514.077 Fi1,406 58400671
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cont’d.)

{13) CAPITAL ASSELS (cont’d.)

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions  Retiremnents Balance
Less Accumuylated Drepreciation
Buildings
In use 2,307,601 94,602 8,516 2,395,687
Leased 6.611.619 307,734 o 6,919,353
8.919,220 402,336 6,516 9315040
Equipment
In use 136,500 34,009 102,500
Special use structures
Water plant and distribution 2.187.622 101,601 2.489.223
Total Accumulated Depreciation 11,443,342 503,937 40,516  11.906.763
Capital assets acquired from U, S,
Air Force, net 47,070,735 (503,937 {(72.890) 46,493,908

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets 70,403,238 160,955 70,242,283
Less Accurnulated Depreciation  {15304.9687)  (969.774) 79.336 (16,195,405}

55098271  (969.774)  (81.619) 54,046,878
On April 4, 1997 the Authority received 3,700 acres of land, associated facilities, and
personal property from the United States Air Force via a 55-year no cost lease. In
accordance with gencrally accepted accounting principles all assets associated with this
lease were capitalized at estimated fair market valoe. The Authority has since obtained this
property in fee title.

During fiscal year 2005 the United States Air Force transferred to the Authority additional
property consisting of a fuel pipeline and associated rights of way extending from Searsport,
Maine to Limestone, Maine. The pipeline was not in service as of June 30, 2010 and the
pipeline and associated easement rights were leased during the vear ended June 30, 2011.

During fiscal year 2005 the United States Air Force transferred title to a building currently
occupied by federal employees to the Authority. Transfer of the deed for this property was
confingent upon the Authority’s promise to lease the property back to the United States at no
cost. The 50-year lease may be renewed, extended, or terminated by the United States at jts
option but the Authority is given no option to decline an extension or renewal or to terminate
the fease. The Uinited States Government may use this property for any government purpose
and is not required to pay any taxes, assessments or similar charges. However, the United
States Government is responsible for all costs and liabilities associated sith the property as
if it were the owner, Accordingly, this property is not included as a capital asset on these
financial statements.

Management feels that the value of these assets could fluctuate significantly in the cvent that
the operational status of the Authority changes.

i5-
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)
(14 LONG-TERM DERY

Az of June 30 long-term debt consisted of?
2021 2020
Note payable fo  Northern  Maine  Development
Cominission, payable in monthly installments of $1.506
including interest at 3% per annu, yatures May 2023;
secured by asscts of the Authoerity, 32,219 49017

Note pavable (o Northern  Maine  Development
Commission, payable in monthly installments of 33,857
including Dlerest al 6% per annum, matures June 2025,
secured by assels of the Authority. 164,350 200,000

Note payable to USDA Rural Development, payable in
annual installments of $14,860 including interest @t 3.25%
per annum, matures Angust 20500 seeured by assets of the
Authority 282,221 287,561

Note payable 1o US Small Business Administration,
obtained through the EIDL program, payable in monthly
installments of $6473 including interest al 2.75% per annum
beginning  January 2022, matures  December 20305
unsecired 150,000

Note payvable 1o Machias Savings Bank, payable in
monthly installments of $12.587 including interest at
3.029% per annoni, matures Seplember 20207 sccured by
assets of the Authority 30,045

Bond payable to the Maine Municipal Bond Bank, payable
in semi-anmual installinents of $10.156 plus interest at 1%
per annin, matures February 2046, 264,046

Nate payable te Katahdin Trust Cempany, payable in
monthly installinents of $3,615 including inferest at 3,5%
per annum, mattures October 20200 secured by assets of the
Authority. 14,248

Note payable to Katahdin Trust Company, payable in
monthly installments of $2,488 including inlerest at 6.5%
per annutn, matures Pecember 2026; secired by 1eal estate. 135,774 156,963

Bond payable 1o the Maine Municipal Bond Bank, payable

in semi-annual nstallments of $11,368 plus boud bank fees

of $569 per installment. matures October 2029 Interest

rate is 0%. 215,992
LRNO,561

Less current portinn { 129,765)
830,790
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)

(14) LONG-TERM DEBT (cont'd.)

Future tong-term debi obligations are as follows for the year ended June 30, 2020:

PRINCIPAL

6/30/2022 129,765
6/30/2023 109,826
6/30/2024 98.697
6/30/2025 b2 400
6/30/202¢6 39,122
2027-31 155,207
2032-36 66,007
2037-41 76,820
2042-46 BG. 415
2047-3]) 83,2093
Tolal 980,361

INTEREST
26,047
24,107
20,164
16,219
13,339
53,325
16,844
16,031
23,436

L8676

208,188

Long-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2021 is as follows:

Long-Term Debt

Note payable ~NMD{C
Note payable - NMDC
Note payable-USDA
Note payable — U8 SU8A

Note payable —~Machins
Savinps Bank

Bond payable - MMBB

Note payable-Katahdin
Trust Company

Note payable-Katahdin
Trust Company

Bond payable - MMBI

Other Long-Term Obligations

OPED fiabilities

Beginning
Balance Advances Payinents
49 (17 16,818
200,000 35,650
287,561 5,340
) 150,000
56,045 30,045
264,046 264,046
14,248 14,248
136,963 21,184
208992
1,237,842 156,000 407,331
34,997 3.024
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TOTAL

155,812
133,933
118,861
118,628
72,461
208,332
112,851
112,851
112,851
101,969

1,248,749

Ending
Halance

32,219
164,350
282,221

156,000

40,521
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORIFY OF MAINE
NOYEES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cont’d.)
(13} DUETO STATE OF MAINE
On January 2, 2019 the Authority entered into an apreement with the Maine Military
Authority (MMAY by which the Authority received equipment valued at 5207000, Under
the terms of the agrecment the Authority ean not sell or transfer ownership of the assets for a
period of ten (1) years, During the ten (10) year period the Authotity is obligated to pay
25% of any lease revenue received for the use of the cquipment. As of June 30, 2021 the
equipment is not lensed and oo payments on the note are anticipated in the current term.

(18Y SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events occurring fhrough September 28, 2021, the
date the financial stalesnents were available to be issued.

{17) FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Aulhority has a number of Nnancial instruments, none of which are held for rading
purpuses.  The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value
hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles, The hierarchy is bascd on
the valustion inputs used to measure the fiir value of the asset. Level | inpufs are quoted
prices in active markets for identical assels; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable
inputs: Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

The Authority estimates that the fair value of all financial instruments at June 30, 2021, does
not differ materially from the aggrepate carrying values of its financial instruments recorded
in the accompanying Statement of Net Position. The estimated fair value smounts have been
defermined by the Authority using available market information and appropriate valuation
methodologies. Considerable judgment js necessarily required in interpreting market data to
develop the estimates of fair value, and, accordingly, the estimates are not neeessarily
indicitive of the amounts that the Anthority conld realize in o current markel exchange.

(18) TAXES

As a governmenial entity, the Authority is fot subject to Fuderal and Stale income taxes,
accordingly, it is not necessary to consider the effects of apy uncertain tax positioas.

The Authority is subject to Federal and State payroll tax and is required fo file the
appropriate tax returns.  Management believes that alt required returns have been properiy
filed as of Junc 30, 2021, No examinations have been conducted by the Federal or State
taxing suthorities and no correspondence has been received from these aothoritics.

-18-
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd.)

(19} SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES

Funtion

General operatioas

(20) BUMMARY (F NON-CASH INVESTING AND FTNANCING ACTIVITIES

MNon-cash investing and linancing activities are as follows:

Mone

£ harges [or

Bxpenses Services

Operating
Grants and
Conteibutions

(2,941,702 334,979

Capital

Granis and
Conlributions

Totd

271,192 {2154.080)

Genesal revenues:
Slate appropriations
{Loring Job Incremental Figancing
laterest ieomne
Sale ol surplus property
Oither income
Total peacral revenues
Churge in net position

Mot position - July 1, 2020

Ned pogition - June 30, 2021
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FA0,000
35,974
2,657
SH147
2331

802304

(1,332,677)
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FORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.)
21y OPEB OBLIGATIONS
Plan Description
The Authority provides health insurance to is employees through Maine Municipal
Employees Health Trust (MMEHT). The Aunthority does aot provide postemploymeat or
postretiremuent healtheare henefits but is subject o an implicit benefit Tor ifs members in
MMEHT.
Accounting Policies
The impact of experience gains and losses and assumption changes on the Tolal OPEB
Liability (TO#8) are recognized in the OPEBR expense over the averape expucted remaining
service life of all active and inactive members of the plan.  As of the hepinning of the

measurenrenl period s average was 4 years.

The table below sunmunarizes the cuarrent halances of deferred outtlows of resources and
deferred inflows of reseurces alang with the recopnition over the next 5 yemrs, and thereafter:

Deferred Delerred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resotirees Resources
Dilfference between expected and actual experience 5 33,281
Payiments subsequent {o the measurement date 220

Dilterence between projected and actust earnings on OPER

plan invesiments

Changes of agsumptions o 18T 1672
$..7407 % 39953

Amounts reported as deferred ontflows and deferred inflows ol rescurces will be
recognized ns OPED expense as follows:
Yenar ciunled June 30

2022 {9325
2123 {7.873)
2024 (7.873
2025 (7.872)
2026 g7
Thercalter 0

As of January 1, 2021, the plan membership data is comprised of 4 active members with only
an implicl benefd,

20
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MATNE

NOTES TO
(21} OPEB OBLIGATIONS (cont’d.)
Key Assumplions

Measurernent Dale:
Discount Rale:

Trend Assunptions:

Administrative and Claims
Bxpense:

Future Plan Chanpes

It 1s assumed that the current
years,

Demographic Assumplions

Retiree continuation:

Rate of mortality:

Marriage asswnptions:
Assumed rate of retirement:

Salary increases;
Changes in assumplions:

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d.}

Januury I, 2021

2.12% per annum for year-end 2020/21 reporting

2.74% per annu for vear-end 2018/20 reporting
Pre-Medicare Medical - Inidal trend ot 8.2% applied in FYE
2018 geading over H4 vears to 4% per anntng

Pre-Medicare Druy - laitial trend of 9.6% applied in FYE
2018 grading over 14 years to 4% per anoum

Medicare Medical  Initial trend of 4.93% applied in FYE
2018 prading over 14 yoars to 4% per antiun

Medicare Drug  lnitial trend of 9.6% applied in FYE 2018
grading aver H vears to 4% per annum

3% por anoum

plan and cost-sharing structure remaios in place for all future

Retirews who are corrent Medicare participants: 100%

Retirees who are Pre-Medicare, active participants: 75%
Spouses who are Pre-Medicare, active participants: 50%

Based on 104% and 120 % of the RP-20H4 Tow!l Dataset
Healthy Annuitant Mustality Table, respectively, for males and
females, using the RP-2014 Total Dataset Employee Moriality
Table for apes prior to start of the Healthy Amnuitaut Mortalily
Table, both project froms the 2006 base rates using RPEC-2015
reodel, with un ultimate rate of 85% for ages 20-85 grading
dowa o an ultimate vate of 0% for ages [11-120 and
somvergence to the titimate rate in the vear 2020,

A husband is assumed o be 3 years older than his wife

For emplovecs ured prior o July 1, 2014

Age 55-63 - 5%

Age 04-69 - 20%

Age 0+ - L00%

For employees lired after fuly 1, 2014

Age 55-58 5%

Age 5964 - 20%

Age 63-60 - 5%

Age 70+ - 100%,

2. T5% per year
Funding moethed was changed from Projected Uait Credit

funding to Entry Age Normal funding method,

-
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LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (sont’d.)
{21) OPEB OBLIGATIONS {cont’d.)
Discount Rate
The discount rafe used to measure the OPER liability was 2.12% based on o measurement
date of January 1. 2021, This rate is assumed (0 be an index rate fur 20-year, tax exempt

general obligation inunicipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher, for pay as
vou go plans.

The following (able shows how the net OPEDR hability (NOL) as of June 30, 2021 would
change if the discount rate used was one percentage point lower or one percentage point
higher than the current rvate. The current rate 15 2.12%.

1% Decrease Current Discount Rate 194 Inerease
1020 212% 1.12%
546711 SA0.521 $35.368

A 1% decrense in the healtheare trend rate inereases the NOL by approximately 15.3% while
a 1% increase in the hesltheare trend rale deereases the TOL by approximately 12.7%.

Changes in the healtheare trend affeet the measimrement of the TOLL. Lower bealthcare trend
rates produce a lower TOL and bigher healtheare trend rates produce a higher TOL. The
tahle below shows the sensitivity of the TOE to the healthcare trend rate,

184 [Decrease Healtheare Trend Rates 19% Increase
$35.039 SA0.571 $47 196

A 1% decrease in the healtheare trend rate decreases the TOL by approximately 13.5% while
a 1% increase in the henitheare trend e increases the TOL by approximately 16.5%.

(22) COVID-19

The COVHX-19 onshreak in the United States has caused business disruption through
mandated and voluntary closings of multiple businesscs.  The disruptions have caused
several potential tenants to delay their frases. At this time management cannot ceasonably
estimate the overall financial impact of the pandemic vn its operations.

The LDA is working to compensate for the loss of state funding. The Avthority is working
with the lepisiature to restore fumding, however, due to COVID-14 disrupiinns it is unknown
if or when the funding will be restorcd. The 1A is seeking loans and graots that have been
made available due to COVID-19.
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LORENG DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MAINU

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cont’d.)

(23) CONTINGENCIES

(24)

Gioing Concern

As indicated in the sccompanying slatement of et position, as of June 30, 2021, the
Authority has deficit vnrestricted net position totaling $1.722.648. The deficit mnounls to
more than a year of operating revenue.  The deficit is prineipally the result of declining
revenues from the State of Maine and from leasing. Due o the reductions in revenue the
Authority has relicd on short and long teim financing (¢ sustain aperations,

These factors, as well as the uncertain conditions that the Authority faces regarding future
reveses, ereate an wicerdinty about the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Management of the Awthority is developing a plan to reduce its liabilities through sales of

assets and obtain additional financing to sustain operations. The ability of the Authoerity to

conlinue as a going caticerm is dependent on additional contributions frons the State of

Maine and additional financing from ouside sources. The financial statemems do not
include any adjustnients that wight Le necessary if the Authority is unable 1o continue as a
poing congcem

The Autherity is curvently negotiating with a private developer who is interested in
acquiring a substantial portion of the developable real estate, excluding the aviation
lactlities, located at the Loring Commerce Center. The real estate will be sold in parcels
over a pumber of years provided that the developer roeets cedain benclumarks in each
preceding year. The initial parcal would inchude fand and buildings valued at $7 million
with the Authority receiving a down payment of $3.5 millivn and the remainmg $3.5 miliion
would be financed over a period of 10 years. The Authority would use the initial down
piyment te pay down accounts payable, the line of credit and other long-term debts while
using the remaining funds to strengthen operational cash How.

COMPONENT UNIT

In February 2021 the Authority acquired a 100% membership interest in Loring Industries,
LLC upon the death of the 1L s sole member. The miember's heirs did not wish to obtain
the 11O and disclaimed this portion of the estate, The Authority recognized the LLC as o
valuable asset to redevelopment efforts and accepted the LLC to keep it operational.

Muanagement has not presented any financial information related to Loring Industries, LLC
i ity Omancial statements Tor the year ended June 30, 2021,

Rn
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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Total OPER Liaklity

Service cost {R{YY)

Interest {inchedes interest oo service cost)

Changes of berefit tenms

LORING DEVELOPMENT AUTHURITY OF MAINE

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET GPED LIABILITY

FOR THE YEAR {:NDED JUNE 30, 2021

Differences between expected and actond experience

Chenges of assumptions

Benelit payments, including refunds of member contributions

Net Change ia total OPER Liability

Total OPEB Linbility - Beginaing

Tatal OPER Liahility - Ending

Plan Biducisry Net Pesifian
Condributions - Employer
Contributions - Member

Net investment income

LORING DEVELOPMENT ADTHORITY () MAINE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED HINE 30, 202t

Benelit payments, including refunds of member contributions

Administrative expense

Mef change in plan fiduciary net positions

Total Fidueiary Net Position - Beginning
Total Fiduciary Met Position - Brding

Plan fiduciary net position as a pereenage of the total OPER liability

Covered employee payrol}

Net QPEB liability as o pereentage of coveted employee payroli

BCHEDULE OF EMPEOYER'S SHARE OF OPFR CONTRIBOTIONS

Supplementary schedule starts with one year of information as of the implementai:on
of GASE No. 75, but eventually will build up to 10 years of infornation. The
sehedule sbove shows changes in TOL and related ratios requized by GASE MNa, 75,

See arcompanying indepeadent auditors' report and notes to (inancial statements,

24-

2021 2020 2019 2018

3 2452 1,365 3 1,57 k3 2,175
3,002 1,404 3.011 3819

- (680} - -
- (57,421} - (294713

7,381 7,202 (6,685) 12.105
£132) (2,243) {2,157} {947)
$ 3524 (47.773) $ 2,257 5 {12,279)
§ 14997 82770 5 47007 549,306
$ 40,521 34,997 3 5770 $ 87,027

2021 2029 2019 218
332 1,243 2,157 o07
{332) (2,243) 2.197 (507}

5 - % - 5 -
0% 0% 0% 1%
251,782 131,783 402,382 402,382
16.1% 13 9% 20.6% 21 6%
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Chester M. Kearney

Certilied Public Accountants

To the Board of Trustees of the
Loring Development Authority of Maine

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

We have audited. in accordance with the auditing standards gencrally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable (o financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Srandards issued by the Comptroller General of the United Statwes, the financial
statements of the business-type activitics of the Loring Development Authority of Maine as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Loring Development Authority of Maine’s basic financial statements,
and have issued our report thereon dated September 28, 2021,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and perfonming our audit of the financial statements, we considered Loring
Development Authority of Maine’s inlernal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a
basis for designing the audit procedures that arc appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose
of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, hut not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Loring Development Authority of Maine’s internal contral,
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the elfectiveness of Loring Development Authority
of Maine's interpal control,

A deficiency in internal contral exists when the desien or operation of # control does net allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstateinents on a tmely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reascnable
possibility that a material misstaternent of the entity’s financial statements will nul be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or
combination of deliciencies in internal control that is less severe than o material weakness, yet
important enough o merit attention by thase charged with governance.,

Our consideration of internal contral was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identily all defiviencies m internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies i internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist thal have not been identitied.

25
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Complianee and other muiters

As part of obtaining reasonshle asaurance about whether Loring Development Authority of
Maine's Fimancial staements wre free of material misstatement, we performed fosts of ats
compliance with cerain provisions of faws, repulations, conlracts, and grant aureements,
noncampliznce with which conld have a direet and material effect on the financial statements,
However, providing an opinion on compliances wilh those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required fo be yeported under Government
Awditing Standdords.

Purpose of this Repor!

The purpose of this repot is solely to describe the scope of owr testing of internal control and
complinnee and the results of that testing, s vot to provide an opinion on the elfectiveness of
the enfity’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit
perfurmed in accordance with Government Audiiing Standards in considering the entity’s internal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is nov suitable for any other purpose.

CE%:W{J iy }fj/?y /(;ﬁ?f?{’"’;{
[ea

Presgue tsle, Maine
Sepiember 28, 2021
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Loring Development Authority of Maine
Fiscal Year 2021 Annual Report
July 1, 2020 — June 30, 2021

PARAGRAPH 1C: PROPERTY TRANSACTIONS DURING
FISCAL YEAR 2021
PROPERTY TRANACTIONS
LEASES AND SALES

GOLF COURSE SALE. 4 Birdies, LLC, purchased the nine-hole golf course and club house in July
2020. The company is owned by golf enthusiasts who made improvements to the operation and
had a successful first season in 2020.

SYNERGEN SOLAR, LLC. SynerGen Solar, LLC exercised its lease option this year and began the
construction phase of its project. The company now leases approximately 20-acres on the north
side of Northcutt Road, where it will install an electrical power generating solar facility.

JASON DIONNE TRUCKING. LDA entered into a one-year lease with Jason Dionne, owner of Jason
Dionne Trucking, for the lease of Building 8264 at Loring, in support if his trucking business.

LORING INDUSTRIES, LLC. LDA reacquired ownership of Loring Industries (L.1) after the owner
of the company passed away. LDA established LI with the intent of creating an opportunity to attract
new business activity to Loring. LI was transferred to a new owner in 2017, who operated the business
and created new manufacturing jobs; his untimely death left the company without an operator. LDA is
now working to transfer the company to a new owner/operator.

SUPPLEMENTAL DEED FROM AIR FORCE AND DECLARATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL COVENANTS.
LDA Trustees authorized the LDA President and CEO to accept a Supplemental Deed, given by
the Air Force to LDA, and to execute a Declaration of Environmental Covenants. The documents
define a set of land use restrictions that address the problem of soil vapor intrusion into certain
buildings; identifying affected properties and requiring soil vapor intrusion to be addressed prior to
commercial occupancy or new construction,

LiCENSES

BLUSHIFT AEROSPACE. bluShift successfully completed a rocket demonstration launch from Loring,
with thousands of people watching online. bluShift is part of the Maine Spaceport initiative.

QINETIQ. QinetiQ, a defense contractor, used the airfield at Loring to conduct testing of a new product
for the US Army. Facility space was also leased in support of the testing operations.

APACHE BOATWORKS, K & S TIMING, LL.C, CUMBERLAND MOTOR CLUB, INC. The runway at

Loring was used by the three Maine organizations in support of their respective events, including land
sailing, land speed racing, and motor cross.
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Loring Development Authority of Maine
Fiscal Year 2021 Annual Report
July 1, 2020 — June 30, 2021

PARAGRAPH 1D: ACTIVITIES OF ANY SPECIAL UTILITY DiSTRICT FORMED UNDER
SECTION 13080-G

NONE

PARAGRAPH 1E: LISTING OF PROPERTY ACQUIRED BY EMINENT DOMAIN UNDER
SECTION 13080-G

NONE

PARAGRAPH 1F: LISTING OF BONDS ISSUED

NONE
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Loring Development Authority of Maine
Fiscal Year 2021 Annual Report
July 1, 2020 — June 30, 2021

PARAGRAPH 1G: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS — JULY 1, 2021 TO OCTOBER 15, 2021 AND
PROPOSED ACTIVITIES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

A summary of the activities on the Loring Commerce Centre between July 1, 2021 and October
15,2021 are provided below.

CONGRESSIONALLY DIRECTED SPENDING REQUEST. LDA submitted a $3.1 million request
through HUD including $1.5 million for roads, $1.2 million for demolition and $400,000 for
marketing. Senator Collins has supported a $2.7 million request for roads and demolition, which
are approved uses for HUD funding. The $400,000 for marketing is not an approved use in that
program. If approved, the funding would be federal FY22 funding.

SEWER REPLACEMENT PROJECT. LDA is moving forward with a $3.6 million sewer replacement
project with funding from the Community Development Block Grant program, Maine Department
of Environmental Protection and the Northern Border Regional Commission. Approximately
20,000 feet of sewer collection line and manholes will be replaced, reducing the inflow and
infiltration (I/T) of surface and ground water into the sewer collection system. In prior phases of
sewer replacement work, approximately 22,000 feet of sewer lines and manholes were replaced.

4BIRDIES, LLC. 4Birdies, owner of the Limestone Country Club, was released from the LDA’s
option to repurchase the property and its right of first refusal. The release is intended to alleviate
the concern of investors who are worried about the uncertainties created by the options,

FIRST CUT HAY, CO, LL.C. LDA entered into a lease with First Cut Hay Co for space in the former
commissary building at Loring. The company is making use of the warehouse space with overhead
doors as it moves forward with its hay storage and processing operations.

POTATO STORAGE. LDA entered into license agreements with two local farmers who needed
additional storage for their extraordinarily large crop of potatoes this year.

GREEN 4 MAINE PROPOSAL. LDA Trustees authorized the execution of a Purchase & Sale

Agreement with Green 4 Maine and its principals, who initially anticipate the startup of three
new businesses and the purchase of several buildings.

PROPOSED AND PROJECTED ACTIVITIES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021

In addition to working to ensuring that our existing tenants remain viable business entities, the
LDA intends to carry out the following activities in fiscal year 2021:
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SUSTAINABILITY TASK FORCE. Move forward with recommendations of the Consultants in their
Sustainability Task Force Report to the Governor.

MARKETING. Develop and begin to execute a new marketing plan for Loring, guided by the 2019
Strategic Plan developed by RKG Associates.

GREEN 4 MAINE (G4M). Work with the G4M principals, supporting the startup of three new
businesses and the sale of several buildings. Moving forward with the G4M proposal is one of
the recommendations of the task force report. G4M would become the master developer of the
Loring properties with LDA providing public infrastructure support.

ACTIVE PROSPECTS. Continue supporting proposed development projects in cooperation with
(G4M and Loring Industries, including manufacturing prospects, fuel pipeline and corridor energy
projects, renewable energy generation projects, aviation maintenance, and various aviation and
aerospace operations at the Loring International Airport.

INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT. Pursue funding for roadway, stormwater infrastructure, and
facilities improvements, and complete the $3.6 million wastewater collection system improvement
project.

OPPORTUNITY ZONES. Take advantage of the Opportunity Zone designation. Loring, along with
the town of Limestone, has been designated an Opportunity Zone. The new federal Opportunity
Zone program is intended to attract new investments, providing tax incentives for investments
made in designated areas. LDA is to be included with DECD and Maine & Company’s marketing
efforts to attract opportunity zone investors.
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Loring Development Authority of Maine
Fiscal Year 2021 Annual Report
July 1, 2020 — June 30, 2021

PARAGRAPH 1H: FURTHER ACTIONS SUITABLE FOR ACHIEVING PURPOSES
OF THIS ARTICLE

The Loring Development Authority recommends that the following actions be considered
by the Governor and Legislature

Approve, a 5-year extension of LD 1670 would help fill a funding gap for operations, while new
businesses cxpand and generate revenue. In 2016, the 127" Legislature enacted LD 1670 which
increased LDA’s tax increment funding associated with Loring based jobs from 50% to 100% for
one year. [t was originally enacted with a 5-year duration with a review requirement, but was later
amended so that the increase to 100% was for one year only. Last year, a Governor’s bill that
would have reinstated the 100% increase for 2 years was in the Revisor’s office but was not

considered because the legislature adjourned early due to the pandemic.

The increased funding is needed to address a cash shortfall, while new development is pursued.
Expenditures for the year are greater than revenues. The pandemic has had an impact in the sense
of the timing of expected new business. LDA received $150,000 from the State DECD and secured
a $150,000 loan from SBA and a $100,000 short-term loan from Northern Maine Development
Commission (NMDC) to address the shortfall in FY21. A $200,000, five-year term loan for
working capital from NMDC helped address the shortfall in FY20. LDA is working with its bank
to secure a USDA guaranteed CARES Act loan for operational funding going forward. The
pandemic and other factors created much operational uncertainty, leaving LDA in a precarious

cash position.
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ATTACHMENT

LORING COMMERCE CENTRE TENANTS

APTIM. APTIM, an environmental engineering firm working for the Air Force Civil Engineering
Center, occupies offices in the LDA office building.

Aroostook National Wildlife Refuge. The 4,700-acre refuge belongs to the National Wildlife
Refuge System, a network of lands set aside specifically for the protection of wildlife and its
habitat. Wetland, grassland and northern forest habitats for migratory birds and endangered
species are protected on the refuge at Loring. Friends of the Aroostook National Wildlife Refuge
support its programs through education, fundraising, recreational and volunteer projects.

Bangor Gas. Bangor Gas, a natural gas company and a subsidiary of Penobscot Natural Gas,
leases the Loring to Searsport pipeline. The company has reactivated a portion of the pipeline to
supply natural gas to customers along the corridor.

Bigelow Aerospace, LLC. Bigelow Acrospace is developing, constructing, launching and testing
human-habitable space complexes, revolutionizing the space tourism industry. Bigelow has a
radar installation at Loring.

British Cycle Supply Company. British Cycle Supply Company’s operations include shipping,
receiving, and warchousing classic British motorcycle parts that are acquired and sold worldwide.
The company has another location in Nova Scotia, Canada.

CCI Utility and Construction Services, LLC. CCI is making use of space at Loring to store
modular units and associated equipment and tools, in support of US Customs and Boarder
Protection operations.

Consolidated Communications. Consolidated Communications leases a former communications
site on Route 89 in Limestone where it set up a satellite tracking and communications station.

Defense Finance and Accounting Service (DFAS) Center. The DFAS center operates out of a
first-class, 145,000 square foot facility where its employees have consistently performed with
excellence since 1995. The center is responsible for finance and accounting services for military
installations across the U.S. and in foreign countries; DFAS Limestone employs 558 people.

Equine Management, L1.C. Equine Management, LLC from Kentucky purchased a 6,800 square
foot building with the intent of refurbishing it and then leasing to a related company that would
provide medical license training online and eventually on site.

First Cut Hay Co., LLC. A newly formed company, First Cut Hay, stores and processes hay and
animal feed products at Loring.

Frontier Transport, LLC. Frontier Transport stores, processes, and transports agricultural and
wood biomass products for local customers. The company with its partner Triple G Sales also
offers a farm equipment storage in a leased facility at Loring.

Graphic Utilities. Graphic Utilities (GU) leases space in the Loring Applied Technology Center
building. The company develops, manufactures and sells innovative ink products.

-9
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Inland Winds Property Management. Inland Wind’s residential properties at Loring include
three and four bedroom town homes and individual homes available for purchase or lease.

Jason Dionne Trucking. The company occupies building #8264 at Loring, in support if his
trucking business.

Lattice Technologies, Inc. Lattice Technologies, a consulting firm performing services in the
defense sector, now occupies an office at Loring,

Limestone Country Club, The Limestone Country Club, Loring’s nine-hole golf course, is a
favorite among many golfers in the area. Operators of the country club also host community and
private events.

Limestone Rotary Club. The Limestone Rotary Club holds its weekly meetings at Loring. It is
a very active club with dedicated members working together to improve their community,

Limestone Water & Sewer District. The limestone Water & Sewer District owns and operates
the wastewater treatment facility at Loring, providing service to all wastewater customers in
Limestone, including Loring Commerce Centre. Four people work for the district at Loring.

Loring Holdings. Loring Holdings (LH), a multi-faceted energy company, is working to advance
energy production and transmission in Maine using the Loring to Searsport pipeline corridor. LH,
along with its partners, have proposed to build the “Maine Power Express” transmission project
connecting renewable sources of power in Maine and Canada to southern New England via an
underground and underwater transmission line. LH is also working on a biofuel project to be
located at Loring.

Loring Industries, LLC, Loring Industries (LI) completed vehicle refurbishment projects and is
pursing business opportunities and capital investments with various partners.

Loring Job Corps Center (LJCC). The Loring Job Corps Center, part of the Job Corps New
England Region and the National Job Corps system, provides academic programs and career
vocational training in multiple industries for youth ages 16-24. The Center welcomed its first 380
students in January 1997. Career Systems Development Corp. operates LICC and employs 167
people.

Loring Military Heritage Center. The Loring Military Heritage Center (LMHC), a museum of
Loring Air Force Base history, was created by a group of enthusiastic and dedicated volunteers.
An impressive collection of Loring memorabilia and artifacts is housed in the LMHC.

McDonald Enterprises. McDonald Enterprises is a small custom manufacturer of wood and
metal products.

Maine Army National Guard. The Maine Army National Guard leases a 27-acre parcel of land
at Loring where it has constructed a facility to warehouse its equipment.

New England Kenworth. New England Kenworth, with Loring Industries, operates a TRP store
at Loring, warchousing and selling vehicle parts. Expansion plans include truck sales and services.

Pineland Farms Natural Meats. Pineland Farms Natural Meats, Inc. operates a beef cattle
feedlot in Fort Fairfield and a composting operation at Loring. Pineland’s goal is to generate
10,000 cubic yards or more of compost material a year. Pineland sells compost in bulk form to
local farmers and in consumer-sized packaging at various retail outlets. Pineland employs two
people at Loring.
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Pioneer Wireless. Pioneer Wireless, a broadband telecommunications company, now leases office
space in LDA’s office building. The new location will help Pioneer capitalize on the Three Ring
binder telecommunications infrastructure, enabling it to offer dark fiber, fiber optic and other
advanced services to Loring customers.

SFE Manufacturing. SFE Manufacturing, operates an equipment fabrication business at Loring,
serving commercial, indusirial, and government customers. SFE employs approximately 18
people.

Straight-Line Fencing. Straight-Line Fencing, an existing company with fencing sales and
installation services, is in the process of establishing manufacturing capacity for a new line of its
own products.

S.W. Collins Company. S.W. Collins Company, a hardware and building materials supplier,
located its commercial line operation in the Loring Applied Technology Center. The line features
custom-built products for commercial customers, offering a wide range of highly refined wood
products including custom-built cabinetry and cases. S.W. Collins employs five at Loring.

SynerGen Solar, LLC. SynerGen Solar, LLC exercised its lease option this year and began the
construction phase of its project. The company now leases approximately 20-acres on the north
side of Northeutt Road, where it will install an electrical power generating solar facility.

The Bunker Inn. The Bunker Inn, located in the former visiting officer’s quarters, is open to the
public with twenty suites available. People traveling for business or pleasure make use of this
unique facility, with many repeat guests.

The Power Company. Based in Washington, Maine, the Power Company constructed two solar-
voltaic systems at Loring; both have been in operation for several years. LDA purchases the
electrical power generated by the solar systems at an overall cost advantage compared with the
cost of electricity available through the traditional utility and energy providers.

Loring Development Authority of Maine
154 Development Drive, Suite F
Limestone, Maine 04750
207-328-7005
LDA@Loring.org
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Legislative Council Meeting
November 18, 2021

Deciding Appeals of Legislative Bill Requests Turned Down By the Council

Requirements Relevant to Bills in the Second Regular Session

Under the terms of the Maine Constitution, Section 1 of Article IV, Part Third, Legislative Power, the
business of the second regular session must be limited to budgetary matters; legislation in the
Governor’s call; legislation of an emergency nature admitted by the Legislature; legislation referred
to committees to study and report by the Legislature in the first regular session; and legislation
presented to the Legislature by written petition of the electors (direct citizen initiative).

Under the 130™ Legislative Council’s Rules of Procedure, any action of the Council requires the
affirmative vote of at least 6 members.

Under Rule 203 of the Joint Rules of the 130" Legislature, any vote of the Legislative Council to
accept or reject a bill or resolve for introduction under the procedures established under the Joint
Rules must be taken by the yeas and nays, and that vote must be recorded and made available for
public inspection.

Under Rule 217 of the Joint Rules, a bill that has been introduced and finally rejected in a regular or
special session may not be introduced in a subsequent session of the same Legislature except by a
vote of 2/3 of both chambers. Therefore, determinations as to the relevancy of Rule 217 will be made
by the presiding officers outside of this meeting.

Suggested Protocol for Deciding Appeals

. The Legislative Council will review appeals in alphabetical order by Sponsor.

. For procedural consistency, when voting on an appeal of a bill request that was denied, the initial
motion on a bill will be presumed to be a motion to accept the bill request for introduction in the
second regular session along with a second to that motion. (A vote of “yes” is to let in the bill; a vote
of “no" is to reject the bill for introduction). Also for procedural consistency, unless otherwise stated,
each motion is presumed to have been made by the vice-chair of the Legislative Council, seconded by
the chair.

. In order to review all legislative appeals in a timely manner, voting will be by electronic vote or a
show of hands, with each Council Member’s vote on each bill being recorded. The record of each
vote will be made available by the Office of the Executive Director for public inspection as soon as
practicable following the meeting.

. A Legislator who has filed a timely appeal of the decision of the Legislative Council to reject a bill
request sponsored by that Legislator will be given a brief opportunity to orally present their appeal to
the Council. A time limit of 2 minutes will be observed for Legislators making an appeal. Only by
leave of the Chair of the Legislative Council may a person who is not a Legislator Sponsor address
the Council.

Discussion of a bill request will be limited to whether it is appropriate for introduction under
Constitutional provisions for second regular session bills, and will not speak to the merits of the bill
itself. If a bill was turned down because it is closely related to another legislative request or to a
carryover bill, the burden is on the Sponsor to convincingly distinguish the Sponsor’s bill request
from the closely related one.
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